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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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Hong Kong
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35th Floor, One Pacific Place
88 Queensway

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited
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KEY DATES

Annual Results Announcement
2020 Annual General Meeting (2020 AGM)
— Last time to lodge transfers

30 March 2020
27 May 2020

21 May 2020
(before 4:30 p.m.)

CORPORATE COMMUNICATIONS

This annual report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company (“Shareholders”)
either in printed form and on the websites of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the Shareholders to receive electronic copy
of this annual report. Shareholders may have the right to change
their choice of receipt of our future Corporate Communications at
any time by reasonable notice in writing to the Company’s Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at is-
enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12ASIAILEE
HK$ million 2018 2019 Changes
B & BT )
Revenue 4722 4110 -13.0%
A
Gross profit 1,305 1,264 -3.1%
E7
Gross profit margin 27.6% 30.8% +3.2 pp
EHE B &
Net profit
AR
— Per Reported 264 90 -65.9%
e e
— Before the depreciation charge* 269 182 -32.3%
TERIBAX"
Net profit margin
AT E
— Per Reported 56% 2.2% -3.4 pp
B#H &K Bz &
— Before the depreciation charge* 57% 4.4% -1.3 pp
HrERIF " B &
Earnings per share HK3.87 cents HK1.33 cents -65.6%
iz B Al Al Al

* The depreciation charge on a self-owned store at Nos. 4-8 Canton Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon, one of the Group’s
flagship stores in Hong Kong, was HK$92.1 million (2018: HK$4.8 million).
REBREBZEF—REEE - LEALAYDHBERBI-8RE 2B 2 EH 2 & 7 X £92,100,000%8 JT (20184 :
4,800,000/ 7t) °
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ACHIEVEMENTS

R 2R

5th Investor Relations Awards 2019

201958 T H E  B AR K 58 '
Best Investor Relations Company (Small Cap) The OUtStandlng Brand Awards 2019
Btk B BR AT — DK T AR AE 2019
Best Investor Relations in Corporate Transaction (Small Cap) Luxury Watch Retailer and Supreme Brand
REREHFRZAER S — PR Award -
Best Investor Relations Team (Small Cap) gﬁﬁi%fT K 3Eﬂtlﬁ1ﬂ$j(%
SRR W R K — A Economic Digest
Hong Kong Investor Relations Association ALY
BWREH ARG
10 Years+ Caring Company
10 Years+ 15 Je B 1 Hong Kong Service Awards 2019
20195 75 9 I #5 K 38
Luxury Watch Retailer
ZRERLT
East Week
T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 PHL I vt S o3 Bt

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) is a leading retailer of European-made internationally renowned watches, together with self-designed
fine jewellery products under its own brand, “Emperor Jewellery’. The Company has been listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since July 2008.

The Group has established a retail network of over 100 stores across Hong Kong, Macau, mainland China,
Singapore and Malaysia, as well as an online shopping platform, and now has over 1,000 staff. With a history of
over 75 years, the Company carries a balanced and comprehensive watch dealership list. The target customers
range from middle to high income groups worldwide. The Group’s core strategy focuses on maintaining its
position as the leading watch and jewellery retailing group in Greater China, coupled with an eye on expansion
beyond the region.

In November 2019, “ ﬁ E»and “ ”, which have been recognised as well-known to relevant public

in mainland China, obtained cross-class protection by the National Intellectual Property Administration, affirming
their wide recognition and brand value in China.

HREERREARQBA(ARADEEMBEAR (AW AEE DI 2HEZERBE CBUNRE R NE T XRE
HEIREZEZRANERREEHN  RTEAIBE - AABR2008F7TAEREHM A H AR AR ([H
RFDERET -

AEEZTEMPBRABI00MESH - B REE EP - PEAM N RERAES:  TREKLBYFE
BATE T ASUEBIB1,000A - ARBIFEABRTSH B KEHEME2EMNERLE - BEEEHSBREIK
EHHPTERSRAAL AKRENRLORBERRFENATENLRESBLERMAKRETERENIA - [
FRF TR BR A PR 2 DA S0 b [ A 98 R 36 7%

2019118 [ 3 B 1 R&[ IRPBEARMEEBARAAM  AEINERMNBEERE R RHRF
& HFEARTBEEZOIIZERMEEE-

MARKET REVIEW

Hong Kong’s retail market landscape experienced an
exceptionally tough cycle during the year ended 31 December
2019 (the “Year”). The ongoing Sino-US trade dispute and local
social issues unquestionably hindered economic development
in Hong Kong. Local shoppers became cautious and put big
spending on hold because of the less optimistic economic
outlook. Store traffic dropped markedly as tourists refrained
from visiting Hong Kong due to concerns regarding social
instability. Hong Kong Tourism Board statistics revealed that
the number of tourist arrivals declined by approximately 39.1%
year-on-year, during the second half of 2019.

As the yuan’s value remained low during the Year, Chinese
tourists’ spending softened and their consumption sentiment
turned weak amid various external uncertainties and falling
asset prices. On a global basis, the performance of luxury sales
moderated.

T 5 [m]

REBE2019F12ABALEFE(RAFED - &
AZETSRELEREEFRENEY - HE
MPXEZHUHM AL S ERARTE
BRBRR BARNEEBENSIRLE T
FESCEERYBEABREE -BRIKFEL
HETREMELDE  EEHEERERZET
& o BRRKERR BN BFER - 12019
FTR¥F  DEREABILFRDA391% -

HRARBERAEFEA-—BERMNMEL  £&&
SNEINABAEREEBR TRNEE T -
BREHERAMEBEERTRE - 2B
RMNE - EEMEERRBAME -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
Overall Review

During the Year, the Group’s total revenue inevitably decreased,
by 13.0% to HK$4,110.1 million (2018: HK$4,722.2 million). As
a result of falling visitor arrivals and dampening consumption
sentiment arising from local social issues, revenue from Hong
Kong market dropped to HK$2,760.7 million (2018: HK$3,642.9
million), which accounted for 67.2% (2018: 77.1%) of the total
revenue. On the contrary, mainland China and Southeast Asia
markets both exhibited strong growth, with revenue increasing
by 36.8% and 26.4%, respectively; while revenue from Macau
market increased by 6.6% year-on-year.

Considering revenue breakdown by product, the watch
segment generated sales of HK$3,158.2 million (2018:
HK$3,664.0 million), accounting for 76.8% (2018: 77.6%) of
the total revenue. In the meantime, revenue from the jewellery
segment decreased by 10.0% to HK$951.9 million (2018:
HK$1,058.2 million).

Despite the weaker consumption sentiment, market demand
for certain luxury watches remained stable and corresponding
prices remained resilient, hence gross profit decreased only
slightly to HK$1,264.0 million (2018: HK$1,304.5 million), while
the gross profit margin increased by 3.2 percentage points
to 30.8% (2018: 27.6%). As a result of a depreciation charge
arising from the self-owned store, net profit decreased by
65.9% to HK$90.0 million (2018: HK$264.3 million), while the
net profit before the depreciation charge decreased by 32.3%
to HK$182.1 million (2018: HK$269.1 million). Basic earnings
per share was HK1.33 cents (2018: HK3.87 cents).

Wt % Il g

# 49 ] Jg

RAFE - ANEE 2 LU AT A8 % 15 1 13.0%
Z%4,110,100,000 i 7T (20184F : 4,722,200,0005%
) ARAHMMEEHERKRTERE T E
AR BEEMRBEL BEMBIWATRESR
2,760,700,0007% 7T (20184F : 3,642,900,0005#
7o) - (4B A 67.2% (20184 : 771%) = AR °
FEANREFEEMSERAHBRHIER -
WA Rl 1 K36.8% 8 26.4% + R i5 8
WA B F EF6.6% °

RERBRADE EHS2BHEKAR
3,158,200,0003% 7T (20184F : 3,664,000,0003#
T0) ' AU A76.8% (20184F : 77.6%) ° [AIEF -
TRE 7 882 W AR 4 10.0% 951,900,000 7T
(20184F : 1,058,200,000/ 7T) °

BEHBBG®ERERS BEETofAEEANTS
TRREFRET BEERDRIZTARE  BEE
A 2 8 3T & £1,264,000,000% 7T (20184 :

1,304,500,000/870) * MEFMXBIERI 2EH D
25 7£30.8% (20184 : 276%) - I B B /& $H Fi
EEZITERE - #F)F 1 65.9% £90,000,000
7 7T (20184F : 264,300,000 7T) ° T & I X Al
2 45 R Bl R 4032.3% £182,100,0007% 7t (2018
£ : 269,100,000/ 7T) - R E AR F| £1.33%8
Il (20184 : 3.87:&1Ill) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

 PHL I vt S o3 Bt

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

Bank balances and cash on hand of the Group as at 31
December 2019 amounted to HK$239.9 million (31 December
2018: HK$627.3 million), which were mainly denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. As at 31 December
2019, the Group had total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$790.9 million (31 December 2018: 1,156.5 million), resulting
in a net gearing ratio (calculated on the basis of net debts over
asset value) of 12.3% (31 December 2018: 11.9%). The Group
also had available un-utilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$1,095.3 million.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current assets and
current liabilities were approximately HK$3,539.4 million (31
December 2018: HK$3,896.8 million) and HK$659.3 million (31
December 2018: HK$908.7 million), respectively. Current ratio
and quick ratio of the Group were 5.4 (31 December 2018: 4.3)
and 0.6 (31 December 2018: 0.9), respectively.

In view of the Group’s financial position as at 31 December
2019, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board” or the
“Directors”) considered that the Group had sufficient working
capital for its operations and future development plans.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Presence in Prime Retail Locations

As at 31 December 2019, the Group was operating 104 stores
(81 December 2018: 95) in Hong Kong, Macau, mainland
China, Singapore and Malaysia. The distribution was as follows:

BN - B E S LW

R2019F 12 A318 - RNEE 2 IRITHEHREFER S
/239,900,000 7T (2018412 A31H : 627,300,000
BIT)  EBLUE TR AREEHE - 7A2019F12 7
318 - NEB 2 @R 178§ #/A790,900,0007% T
(2018512 A31H : 1,156,500,0007 7t) » & It %
BELZRUNFEEBRANEEFEZLRFE)
512.3% (20185%12 A31H : 11.9%) - A &£ B IR
BREB A KEA IR TR E £1,095,300,000
BT o

R2019F12A31H A& B2 RBE E LT
B & 5 Bl 4 /43,539,400,0005% 7T (20184F12 A
31H : 3,896,800,000/% JT) %659,300,000/% T
(2018412 A31H : 908,700,000/ jT) » A& &£ &
MBI L R RE L K5 Rl /5.4 (20185612 A
31H : 4.3) 0.6 (2018412 A31H : 0.9) °

ZENAREER2019F12 A31EHM B ik 0 - &
N2 ESS(ESSIHEF)RAELEE
AU ZEEESUNENELEER RKE
BaTEl -

3% Il gt

BEREFEHEHR

R2019F12H31H - AEEREE - BF] -
Bl A TN % 55 2R 78 O AC 2104 (2018 4F
12A318 :95)H /5 - oM T :

Number of stores
JE s 2 H

Hong Kong BB 31
Macau B P 5
Mainland China A A 59
Singapore 0 3% 8
Malaysia R 7 g 1
Total By 104
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These stores include self-branded “Emperor Jewellery’
stores, dedicated watch boutiques and multi-brand watch
stores (with or without jewellery counters).

Over the years, the Group has successfully built a strategic
sales network of both watches and jewellery in prime shopping
areas and extended the presence of “Emperor Jewellery’
in emerging shopping areas in Hong Kong. During the Year,
several “Emperor Jewellery’ stores were opened in emerging
shopping areas, to enhance its brand exposure.

The weaker yuan provided more incentives for inbound
consumption. During the Year, several “Emperor Jewellery’
stores and two dedicated watch boutiques were opened in
first-tier cities within mainland China, to seize the opportunities
arising from the expansion of the luxury market, which is fuelled
by rising income levels, shifting demographics and improving
quality of life.

Beyond Greater China, during the Year the Group continued to
implement plans for expanding both watch and jewellery stores
in Singapore. This enabled the Group to benefit from extensive
tourist exposure as well as rising local spending.

Solidifying Leading Position

With its long-standing history, the Group is a trusted partner of
and maintains solid relationships with major Swiss watch brand
suppliers, thereby continuing to hold a comprehensive portfolio
of watch dealerships and maintaining its leading position,
especially in Hong Kong. The Group actively participates in
co-marketing campaigns and events with brands, highlighting
new products and connecting the customer in a personalised
way.

Enhancing the Jewellery Business

The Group offers premium quality “Emperor Jewellery’
products with a dedication to design excellence and
craftsmanship. The spectacular “Emperor Jewellery” range
features a variety of precious gem stones with a key focus on
diamonds and jadeites. “Emperor Jewellery”’ unveils unique
collections of exquisite designs that embrace and nurture
different clusters of customers.

During the Year, the Group launched new designs of the
“Sunray” Collection, drawing inspiration from the warm rays of
the sun. To mark the launch of the collection, the Group invited
Mr. Hins Cheung, a renowned artist who confidently embraces
versatility, to star in the campaign advertisements.

ZEEHEEEEmE [ REFKE])E  BERE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Leveraging Group Synergies

The Group enjoys unique advantages by leveraging synergies
with other companies within Emperor Group. For example,
Emperor International Holdings Limited — another listed
company under Emperor Group — owns many premium retail
properties in renowned shopping areas. By leasing retail stores
at prime locations from it on an arm’s length basis, the Group
can enjoy guaranteed foot traffic.

Another synergy arises through Emperor Entertainment Group
and Emperor Motion Pictures, two private arms under Emperor
Group. The Group invited VIP guests to its movie premieres
and sponsored jewellery for the artistes. Such exposure
opportunities, with pop artistes, movie stars and high-profile
celebrities, serve as an important tool for enhancing the
reputation of the “Emperor’ brand, particularly in Chinese-
speaking communities.

PROSPECTS

Despite the recent phase-one agreements between the United
States and China which slightly eased trade tensions, the
ongoing trade discussions will continue casting shadows on the
growth of the global economy. Meanwhile, local social issues
are likely to continue to adversely affect tourism and the retalil
market, and hence local economic development as a whole.
Against the backdrop of the unfavourable market situation,
especially in Hong Kong, the Group will adhere to its prudent
approach, and is planning the following strategies for mitigating
the potential downside risk:

- The Group will closely monitor inventory levels and
remix the product portfolio in accordance with market
responses, to optimise the use of capital;

- The Group will exercise stringent control over operating
costs and aim to effectively manage shop rental pressures
in Hong Kong;

- The Group will evaluate individual shop performances in
Hong Kong. In certain situations, the Group may consider
optimising the retail network, and plan better reallocation
of resources; and

- The Group will promptly react to market changes, and
take appropriate measures to address and improve its
overall operating efficiency.

58 A2 T i ) 2%
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BEER LB - AR At eFHFRAE
MEHKREXRTETSEEINEE £
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The outbreak of coronavirus disease has been spreading
across the world since January 2020. Many countries or
territories have already implemented travel restrictions while
some have even imposed nationwide lockdown, further
decreasing the number of visitor arrivals in Hong Kong. The
tough business environment which started in the second half
of the Year is expected to persist for some time, with problems
exacerbated by the coronavirus disease outbreak. The Group
will closely monitor the market condition and strive to stay
competitive in the marketplace.

Looking beyond the current uncertainties, the Group remains
committed to seeking and seizing new opportunities, and is
well-prepared to excel in changing times. As China remains an
important engine of the world’s long-term growth, the Group
will focus on strengthening its footprint in mainland China
and Southeast Asia, and further explore opportunities for
geographical expansion.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Since early January 2020, the coronavirus disease has been
spreading across China as well as other countries. Several
travel restrictions have been introduced afterwards to combat
the coronavirus disease, further deterring the number of
inbound and outbound visitors. The public health crisis is likely
to hinder global economic development. It is expected that
the general consumption sentiment may even turn stagnant,
restraining global luxury consumption in the near-term. A
tough business environment is expected to persist for some
time. Since the duration of the pandemic is still uncertain, the
Group cannot reasonably quantify its financial impact at the
date of this annual report. However, a prolonged pandemic
may have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition for the year
ending 31 December 2020.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has 819 salespersons
(2018: 875) and 234 office staff (2018: 251). Total staff costs
(including Directors’ remuneration) were HK$313.9 million
(2018: HK$291.7 million) for the Year. Employees’ remuneration
was determined in accordance with individual’s responsibility,
competence & skills, experience and performance as well
as market pay level. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, provident funds and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentive or rewards to staff, the Company adopted
a share option scheme, particulars of which are set out in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

H2020F1H B mERMBEHESERER
EX-FZERINMREBEHEKERS - 2
MEREETEEMEHE  E—FRIDTE
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EHRRABBTBEANBZEE

CINDY YEUNG

B it S8
Executive Director
(Chairperson & Chief Executive Officer)

PUAT B (0 AR A7 B AR

CINDY YEUNG, aged 55, the Chairperson and Managing
Director of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, as well as the Chairperson of the Executive
Committee of the Company and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She joined the Group in
September 1990 and became a director of Emperor
Watch & Jewellery (HK) Company Limited, an operating
arm of the retail outlets of the Group in Hong Kong, in
April 1999. The Group has been under her steering since
then. Ms. Yeung is responsible for the Group’s strategic
planning, business growth and development and overseeing
different operations within the Group. She is the Director
of Examination (Supervisory Committee) of Hong Kong
Jewellers’ & Goldsmiths’ Association. She is also the
honorary ambassador of “Because | am a Girl” organized
by a charity body, PLAN International Hong Kong. Ms.
Yeung has over 30 years of experience in watch and
jewellery industry. Prior to joining the Group, she worked
in the sales department of Anju Jewelry Ltd., a US based
company engaging in trading of jewellery products. She
has obtained the qualification of the Graduate Gemologist
of Gemological Institute of America (GIA) and subsequently
graduated from University of San Francisco with a Bachelor’s
Degree of Science in Business Administration majoring in
Management, with emphasis on International Business.

BHEE O RESECIRREREK
BEAEEZITHRAEE  URARBRITE
BEEFREEARAIETHERRIZES - &
R1990FOA MR ASKE - WMHR1999F 4%
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NEEXEKEEZCER - FAEABKAE
REPEMEDNSESE2EEEE - H#H
RESHERBREHS (BB)FMBERI[Ee
REZIITH 2 RBRE - BT HREER R
ETX¥BEABBI0FoLH  NMBEAXRE
Ef HEBRANRESKREEHEREIZE
Bl A F]Anju Jewelry Ltd. Z $HE 0 - HETS
EBE AR (GIA) BT B B A S A ZEE D
% EMEER=EMAE BFEIBHE
BESLELN TEEEE  HXIREERD
jé% °
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

WONG CHI FAIl, aged 64, an Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong has been involved in the management
of the Group since November 1998. He is a member of the
Executive Committee and the Remuneration Committee of
the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Currently, Mr. Wong is also a director of
Emperor International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 163)
(*Emperor International”), Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Limited (Stock Code: 296) (“Emperor E Hotel”), Emperor
Culture Group Limited (Stock Code: 491) (“Emperor
Culture”) and Ulferts International Limited (Stock Code:
1711) (“Ulferts”), all being associated corporations of
the Company. Having over 30 vyears of finance and
management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from retailing
of watch and jewellery, manufacturing to wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, property investment and development,
hotel and hospitality, financial and securities services,
cinema development and operation to entertainment
production and investment, artiste management as well as
media and publication. He is a Certified Public Accountant
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA, aged 57, an Executive
Director of the Company. Ms. Fan has been involved in
the management of the Group since November 1998.
She is also the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance
Committee, a member of the Executive Committee and
the Nomination Committee of the Company as well as a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Currently,
Ms. Fan is also a director of Emperor International, Emperor
E Hotel, Emperor Culture and Ulferts. Having over 30 years
of corporate management experience, Ms. Fan possesses
diversified experience in different businesses ranging from
retailing of watch and jewellery, wholesaling and retailing
of furniture, property investment and development, hotel
and hospitality, financial and securities services, cinema
development and operation to entertainment production
and investment, artiste management as well as media and
publication. She is a lawyer by profession in Hong Kong
and a qualified accountant, and holds a Master’'s Degree in
Business Administration.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES

EHRRABBTBEANBZEE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

CHAN SIM LING, IRENE, aged 57, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in
May 2016. She is also the Chairperson of the Nomination
Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee
and the Corporate Governance Committee of the Company.
Ms. Chan is a retired solicitor with over 20 years of
experience as independent non-executive director of various
listed companies. Currently, she is also an independent
non-executive director of Chinlink International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 997) and Emperor Culture. Ms. Chan
graduated from The University of Hong Kong with Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws.

LIU HING HUNG, aged 56, was appointed as Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in May 2017. He
is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a
member of the Remuneration Committee and the Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Mr. Liu runs a
professional accountancy firm in Hong Kong and has over
20 years of experience in accounting, taxation, auditing and
corporate finance. Currently, he is also an independent non-
executive director of SIM Technology Group Limited (Stock
Code: 2000). Mr. Liu holds a Master’s Degree in Business
Administration. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Taxation
Institute of Hong Kong and also a member of the Society
of Chinese Accountants and Auditors.

CHAN WILING, YVONNE, aged 55, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in May
2017. She is the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee of the Company. Ms. Chan previously
worked in two international accounting firms, Touche Ross &
Co. and Ernst & Young and engaged in accounting, auditing
and information security fields for 20 years. She graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University majoring in
accountancy and obtained a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Heriot-Watt University in Scotland. Ms.
Chan is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

The Board presents its annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 37
to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 65.

An interim dividend of HK0.35 cent per share for the Year
(2018: HKO0.7 cent per share) amounting to approximately
HK$23.7 million (2018: HK$47.5 million) was paid to the
Shareholders during the Year.

The Board did not recommend any payment of final dividend
for the Year (2018: HKO0.55 cent per share, amounting to
approximately HK$37.3 million).

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year and
an analysis of the likely future development of the Group’s
business are set out in the Management Discussion and
Analysis from pages 6 to 11. Description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 49 to 52 and note
29B to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

There is an important event affecting the Group that had
occurred subsequent to the Year up to the date of this
report. The adverse business impact affected by the
coronavirus disease outbreak are set out in the “Prospects”
section of Management Discussion and Analysis and “Event
after the Reporting Period” section on page 11 of this annual
report and the relevant occupational health and safety
measures are set out in 2019 Environmental, Social and
Governance Report of the Company (“2019 ESG Report”).

In addition, discussion on the Group’s environmental policy
and performance, key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company
are set out in the 2019 ESG Report.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

B

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 68.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to
Shareholders as at 31 December 2019, calculated in
accordance with the Companies Ordinance, amounted to
HK$936,114,000 (2018: HK$856,999,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 164
of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the Year are set out in note
13 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

DIRECTORS OF THE COMPANY

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this
report are set out from pages 12 to 14 of this report. Details
of Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Article 80(1) and (3) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, Ms. Cindy Yeung and Ms. Chan
Wiling, Yvonne shall retire by rotation at the 2020 AGM to
be held on 27 May 2020 (Wednesday) and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at
the 2020 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the
Group within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The names of all directors who have served on the boards
of the subsidiaries of the Company during the Year or during
the period from 1 January 2019 up to the date of this report
are set out below and those marked with an asterisk* are
also Directors of the Company as at the date of this report:

*Ms. Cindy Yeung

*Mr. Wong Chi Fai

*Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Mr. Yeung Ching Loong, Alexander
Ms. Koo Betty Po Har Yeung

Mr. Au Yit Hoo, Abel

Ms. Chui Man Yee

Ms. Rafiati Binti Safiie

Ms. Yan Jing
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DIRECTORS” REPORT

B

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the Group’s business were entered into
or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the
Company has in force the permitted indemnity provisions
which are provided for in the Company’'s Articles of
Association and in the directors and officers liability
insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against the Directors and the directors of
the Group respectively.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”"))
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
adopted by the Company (“EWJ Securities Code”) were as
follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company

Ordinary shares of the Company (“Shares”)

RAFEERN  BREBAAON  BETLRE
BABERRKEAEEE2MAERNEX
MOLZERBFZEK »

Y v A TR A 0 SC

RAFENEERAREARIREET AL
BE=oh R EEFDAMELENELES
ERER  ARRMBARERN  ZFHKX
BHERARRZABERAIEREEZ
EEMmAEEABEERA -

EHE MR ATBON HZ 57

R2019F12A31H  EE R ARA Z &R & TT
BABRARRREREE ZE(TERLES
MEBEGEH([EFEHREBEED])EXVE)Z
B - HEROREEEPEE ARFIRIE
BEREEIEMNEISNEBETHEEZ S LM
et 2 EE LA R IR BEARRIRAZ
BEEETEFR G ZIZETR (R EEHKIK
EXATHDARTHNEARARAI MBI Z
B MABRMT

(A) RELQFBEZZHAR
FpazEER (RG]

Number of % of issued
Name of Director Capacity/Nature of interests Shares Interested voting shares
BFEEEZ HEe#RTH
EsnR B EEMtE KRB E RERRKRHD %
Ms. Cindy Yeung Eligible beneficiary of a private trust 4,290,850,000 63.29%
BHBX L IMABRZEERZHA
Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Watch & Jewellery Wi BERMIBRESERREEBRIERE

Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited (“AY W&J Holdings”). AY W&J Holdings
was held by Novatrust Limited (“Novatrust”) in trust for a
private discretionary trust under which Ms. Cindy Yeung is
one of the eligible beneficiaries.

RAR([REEKKEERNDEES  H
BEBEXNEERREERAERAR(HR
KEKKBEEZERDZ22EMBRE - 15
2 PX §% % TR B 1% B% F Novatrust Limited
(INovatrust ) A fL A B 1B E T #5
B MBEHRERELZTAREGERIHZAZ
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of the Company

(i) Ordinary Shares

Name of Director

ESNR

(B) Long position interests in associated corporations

Name of associated
corporation

HBEEER

DIRECTORS” REPORT

(i) ZBEEK

Capacity/Nature of
interests

B/ REME

shares interested

L

(B) RALARMEB LB 2 FRER

% of issued
voting shares
HERTHE
RERRD%

Number of

BREHZ
kG 8B

Ms. Cindy Yeung Emperor International Eligible beneficiary of 2,747,610,489 74.71%
B#HBxt Holdings Limited a private trust (Note)
(“Emperor Intemational”) MAERZEER (fet)
ZEFEER)AERA @A
(IREEE))
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Eligible beneficiary of 851,352,845 68.94%
Limited (“Emperor E Hotel”) a private trust (Note)
HEREBEBERAA MWAEREZEER (W)
(IZEREEE]) @A
Emperor Culture Group Limited  Eligible beneficiary of 1,862,700,000 57.97%
(“Emperor Culture Group”) a private trust (Note)
REXEREERRAT hAEFEZEER (Wit
(ZEXEE]) @A
Ulferts International Limited Eligible beneficiary of 600,000,000 75.00%
(“Ulferts”) a private trust (Note)
BB A RN A (B ]) MWAEREZEER (W)
@A
Ms. Fan Man Seung,  Emperor International Beneficial Owner 10,500,000 0.29%
Vanessa ® 2 BB ERBEBA
BHELL
(iij) Debentures (i) EREF

Name of Director
EENS

Name of associated
corporation

B zEER

Capacity/

Nature of interests

g6/ REENE

Amount of
debentures held
FEEREESE

Mr. Wong Chi Fai Emperor International Interest of controlled HK$2,000,000
BLBRAE ®EEHK corporation 2,000,000/ 7T
REHEE  ER
Note: These Shares were ultimately owned by the respective W ZEBRPOITHEAEILAEES

private trusts. Ms. Cindy Yeung, by virtue of being one
of the eligible beneficiaries of the respective private

trusts, had deemed interests in the same shares.

BER - ERBHRELLIREA
RN 5%&‘@/\2—
BURBAR R B By BB 2

25 o
I

00 000 00000COCOCEOCOEOOOEOEOGOEONOOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 oo 0o 0o o0 0000000000000 000O0O0
W RFEEARTAMRA R 2019 FH

19



DIRECTORS” REPORT

W

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of
the Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company had adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 23 May 2018. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are summarized and set out in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements. No option was
granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption and up to 31 December
2019.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option scheme as disclosed in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Company during the
Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than as stated above, at the end of the Year and at
no time during the Year was the Company, any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of
the Company or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS” INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2019, none of the Directors or their
respective close associates was interested in any business
which was considered to compete or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

B EXHEEI > R2019F12A31H @ &
BEEHLARAESITHRABERARR HEML
A EE (TR AESFR P EKRFIEXVED)
ZEMRRG BEROREESTFESTM

a5 DL 3¢ A
eIk A -

Ji e

KRN FE R2018F5 238 £ 4y — 18 B8 I #&
([ ETE)) - BREREIZFEBD
Bt W E R4 E MR ERM 32 - BEMN
BERET2IEE 2201912 A318 » I EE
BEERD - 176 - FEHEI K-

B 5% 4 0 o

BRI AR & B 5 3R M RE 324K BR HO 8 R At
g5 WEEMNREHEHEHRARRBRA
FEALINAFERTE

Jis ' T oy oA B il G

B EXFTESN RAFERRAFERE
B - NRRF) - HEMZERAR - BEBA
CIEACEEPNCIE F S IRVAS TS - IR ¢
EFHARARSITRABRKEFA B8
PR AT F LA #E AR QR AT ] )R A
B 82 2 A 10 3 (B 4 55 1 2% BXRl) & »

ERNBFRBE IR

R2019F12A31H - MERBHMIAMES L
MATETRAUDETFEEESTIAEES
BEZERBMBEALIRER AAEEAEE
X EEAEEBNRFCANEBYER
R o

000000000000 00000000 0000 [\NPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED ANNUALREPORT20]19 e oo o000 0000000000000 00000

PR FEER T ARA R 2019 ¥

20



DIRECTORS” REPORT

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS

So far as is known to any Directors or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2019, the following persons
or corporations (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have
interests and short positions in the Shares or underlying

L

EX YIS WS E N YN £

MEMEZFTHIARAZSTHRAENA > B
2019F12A31H ' B EEZFHK AR A ZSITH
ANEBSN AT A LA E AR {5 sk A8 RE AR 19
FHAEIHER AN EERECHERNRE
BERHERNEICIEATHEZ S LM

Shares as recorded in the register required to be kept under ([EZFFEEELM]) AKBRITHEARA
Section 336 of the SFO (‘DI Register’) or as otherwise Z#H#z M AR T
notified to the Company were as follows:
Long Position in the Shares RRBZEFR
Number of % of issued
Capacity/Nature of interests Shares Interested voting Shares
FEREmZZ HEeE#THE
5% HEntE il - 4=| RERKRHD %
Emperor W&J Holdings Beneficial owner 4,290,850,000 63.29%
EEERRKBEIER EnEAA
AY W&J Holdings Interest in a controlled 4,290,850,000 63.29%
B AKERIREER corporation
REEGEE 2 #
Novatrust Trustee of a private trust 4,290,850,000 63.29%
FLABFEZXFEA
Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a private trust 4,290,850,000 63.29%
(“Dr. Albert Yeung”) FAAEFEZ 8IS A
BEKET((HBIEL))
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 4,290,850,000 63.29%
BEh2 Xt e 48 &
Note: These Shares were the same Shares of which Ms. Cindy Yeung  ff37: WERGOIEX[EERSEESTHABZEE

had deemed interest as set out under Section (A) of “Directors’
and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, the
Directors or chief executives of the Company were not aware
of any person or corporation (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had, or were deemed
or taken to have, any interests or short positions in any
Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the DI Register.

BEIMWEANBAHEGHEELTRER/ES
Z AR

B EXIHEEI  R2019F12A31H » &%
HARNBREBITHAB W NMBEMA LK
EE(BEERARRESITERABRINRE
I DR AR D P A R B E
Ve AR BEECMAE s 2T Az
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DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

OF SIGNIFICANCE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of
the Company:

1. Master Leasing Agreements (“MLA(s)”)

Date . 24 May 2018

Parties : (1)  EIHL Agreement: The Company
and Emperor International

(2) EEH Agreement: The Company
and Emperor E Hotel

(collectively “Emperor International
Group”)

Nature :Each of MLA sets out the
framework of the terms governing
all existing and future tenancy/
licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing of
certain office properties or other
properties (including retail shop,
signage or signboard space) from
Emperor International Group for
the period from 24 May 2018 to
31 March 2021 with aggregate
tenancy annual caps being set at
HK$216,000,000 (with Emperor
International) and HK$6,000,000
(with  Emperor E Hotel) for the
financial year ended 31 December
2019 ("Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps”).

ERERERR Y - KPR ) Z B 2
BB AE 5

FEBEXS

RARFER  AEELZERARBBEEALGE
ZEREHRAUETIIRS:

1. HBEAGE
A 2018 5H24H
FIA7F () REEEWE: AQF
REEEE
() SR L i

N

all

RA R R SRR R

(B REBERKE])

ME  REBEHEREEIAERE
B B & B 1201845824 H
Z2021F3A31H B 7t
EETHAEMESEMY
¥ XBREEHEH EBES5E
KB METZAERE
RARBE BERXS (A
ERFMMERGI - W5t
H Z2019F12 A31H IE B
FERTHREEFELRA
216,000,000/ 7T (2 5 2 &
B%) %6,000,000/% JT (£ %=
ERERIE)BRHEFE
EBRD o
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Pursuant to the MLAs, relevant
member(s) of the Group and any
member(s) of Emperor International
Group may from time to time
enter into any definitive leasing
agreement in relation to any
Tenancy Transaction (“Definitive
Leasing Agreement”) on terms
and conditions as may be agreed
between the relevant parties. The
terms of each Definitive Leasing
Agreement shall be on normal
commercial terms or on terms which
are no less favourable than those
offered by independent third parties.
The terms and rental shall be subject
to arm’s length negotiation and
determined based on the condition
of the properties and with reference
to the then prevailing market rents on
properties comparable in location,
area and permitted use.

The aggregate amounts paid/
payable in respect of the Tenancy
Transactions for the Year with
members of Emperor International
Group were as follows:

Emperor HK$116,021,000
International

Emperor E Hotel HK$4,713,000

The Company, Emperor International
and Emperor E Hotel were all
indirectly controlled by the relevant
private trust. As such, under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, each of
Emperor International and Emperor
E Hotel was a connected person of
the Company and accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under
the MLAs constituted continuing
connected transactions of the
Company.

DIRECTORS” REPORT
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REBEAEE R AREME
FARERREREEHREE
EfAIRX B 2 7] A] A B g AE A
MERZILMEBRIHTT A6
19 7€ 2 M6 K B A5k A BT SLAT fn]
EXBAEHZE(EXHER
@) FEEAHEE HFE 2K
R —RBERER IR
RIBIY £ =T74 T 2 1&KET
oo R RIE S RN FE
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MERBEZARRENE  H
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SHEMETE -

RAFEAR BREFEKRE
B ERRMETZEN
ENEHER BB

HEREE 116,021,000/ 7T

OB IR 4t 4,713,000/ 7T
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ARm - REFREFE SR
448519 A B AL A FEME
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Effective
Dates

Announcements :

Circular

The MLAs and the Aggregate Annual
Caps were approved by the Board
and/or the independent shareholders
of Emperor International, Emperor
E Hotel and the Company as
appropriate. Ms. Cindy Yeung, a
Director, by virtue of being one of the
eligible beneficiaries of the private
trust which ultimately controls both of
Emperor International and Emperor
E Hotel, has deemed interest in the
MLAs.

: (1) EIHL Agreement: 9 August 2018

(2) EEH Agreement: 2 August 2018

The Aggregate Tenancy Annual
Caps had replaced all the then
annual caps previously obtained
by the Company for the Tenancy
Transactions after signing of the
agreements.

24 May 2018 and
9 August 2018

£ 17 July 2018

4

w

-

A
H

of

mHEmELEHEFE L
[REGREEER  RERLE
BERARRIZEEER
B CRHLE - ENEE
1B B R T R HRIGIEHI R
SFPR K KR 2 REEEE 2 7L
AERAEBIXAEAZ—
MR ERNAHEHETHE
B e

) R E B KR W&

20188 H9H

(2) WEIREEEHZ:
201848 A2H

RizzER AHEFE
EFREBKARB TR HE
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EBR -

© 2018F5H24H &

20188 H9H

: 20184 7H17H
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2. Consignment Agreements with Dr. Albert Yeung

The Group may at its discretion make consignment
arrangements with Dr. Albert Yeung and his associates
and sell the consigned items at its retail shops as the
Directors may think fit and beneficial to the Group.

Date

Parties

Consignment
Period

Consignment
Annual Cap
for the Year

Consignment
for the Year

4 November 2016
(1) The Company

(2) Dr. Albert Yeung, the father of
Ms. Cindy Yeung (a Director of
the Company)

1 January 2017 to
31 December 2019

HK$65,000,000

During the Year, a jewellery
item with consignment value of
HK$10,000,000 from Dr. Albert
Yeung's associate was recorded.
The Group had applied the same
purchasing and retail pricing policy
and mechanism to this item as those
normally adopted in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the
Group. No sale of such item was
made during the Year.

On 15 November 2019, the Group entered into a new
consignment agreement for renewing the existing agreement
on similar terms and conditions except the annual caps. The
new consignment agreement is effective for the period from
1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

2.

B

HEBLZFEGH
AEEAHBRAETEGBLIRABE

AMEEFELZHIRESR

RAE R

HASBEBENREERTERHLES

W -
SR

HEP)

FEME

REES -

EFE
EBR

R
5 &

: 2016F11 H4H

C(1) ARF]

(2 HBEL HBHEBELtL
(RRARER) 2 XH

2017F1A1B &
2019%F 12 A31H

65,000,0007% 7T

CRAREER AR E S

—HEEBEE 2B E A
FreE®kEat EEA
10,000,000/ 7T » AN & &
MZEMEMNNBERT
EEBHE RiH HEAE
EREHER—REKARE
RETHMEMER - RAFE
B ZEfiRELRE -

2019F 118158  AE BRI FH T EH
& DRBEABE IBUGER REH BrE
B ERINERT - ¥15 & WHim A 8 H /2020
F1HA1H E2022F12H31H -

W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

25

ANNUALREPORT2019 o e o 0000000000000 00000




DIRECTORS” REPORT

W

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

None of the other related party transactions as set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions that are required to be disclosed under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company had complied with
all the disclosure requirements of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Auditor’s Letter on Non-exempt Continuing Connected
Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s non-exempt continuing connected transactions
(*CCTs”) in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s Letter”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The auditor had issued an unqualified letter containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the CCTs in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy
of the Auditor’s Letter had been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company
(“INEDs”) had reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter
and confirmed that these transactions had been entered into
by the Group:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may
be); and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Shareholders as a whole.

BTHRBERE
BEAMENGEE VBRI EI42 &
HTRGEHRETHRAUEMAZTE TATRE
LHEIXSHABBEERS - AARIDET
ERRAFUATHNME WERE

REMABAERRFEBERZ ZRN

ARAZBMECRZERBELGTAQ
TR M2 BB T B R RTS A RIB000 (&1&
FDMIELFBENEFAEFHAINE
BREE] Y2REKHAFARBEARE
7B T A5 I P st 5 48 B 58 52 5 O A B B 1
([ B ED R 1)) - AR E 2 NIRRT
BREXZ(RHBEHERS] -

T2 BREM O 3% IR LT AR B 5B 14A 561K 3 B R
BERRM NERBERERSI2ER

K tE R o AN E)E M) B 32 BT A% SR Em e
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Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance which was
significant in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for approximately 1.4% (2018:
11%) of the total turnover of the Group. The Group’s five
largest suppliers contributed to approximately 85.3% (2018:
74.4%) of the purchases of the Group during the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
owns more than 5% of the number of issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the above major customers and
suppliers of the Group.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company had received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. The Company considered all of them
to be independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument of the Directors shall be decided by the
Board as recommended by the Remuneration Committee
having regard to a written remuneration policy (which
ensures a clear link of business strategy and a close
alignment with the Shareholders’ interest and current
market best practice). Remuneration should be paid with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives, the
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Executive and Non-executive
Directors, internal equity of employment conditions
across the Group and applicability of performance based
remuneration. The Director’s fees are paid in line with market
practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

B
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Employees’ remuneration was determined in accordance
with individual’'s responsibility, competence and skills,
experience and performances as well as market pay level.
Remuneration package includes, as the case may be, basic
salaries, Directors’ fees, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to financial performance of the
Group and individual performance, and other competitive
fringe benefits such as medical and life insurances. Details
of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 29 to 56.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made charitable donation
amounting to approximately HK$883,099.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2020 AGM to re-
appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Cindy Yeung
Chairperson

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards
shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees
of the Company.

The Board has adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules. For the Year, the Company had complied
fully with the code provisions of the CG Code except with the
deviation from code provision A.2.1 regarding segregation of
roles of chairman and chief executive officer as explained
below.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

As at 31 December 2019, the Board comprised six Directors
(three Executive Directors and three INEDs) who possess
the skills, experience and expertise either in the same
industry or relevant to the management of the business of
the Group. The biographies of the Directors are set out on
pages 12 to 14 of this annual report under the “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Executives” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A.2.1 requires that the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Ms. Cindy Yeung, being
the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, has also been
appointed as the Chairperson of the Board who provides
the Board with strong and consistent leadership while
at the same time leading the management on effective
planning, formulation, implementation and execution of
long-term business strategies of the Group. The Directors
have considered the issue of balance of power of authority
on the Board and believes the current structure (having
strong independent elements in the Board, delegation of
authorities to the management, supervision by the Board
and Board committees) can properly address the potential
issue on power concentration. All Directors, having different
experiences to bring different expertise to the Company, are
properly briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and
that adequate, complete and reliable information is received
by the Directors. The Board is of the opinion that the current
Board structure functions effectively and does not intend to
make any change thereof.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well recognized
experience and expertise in legal, accounting or auditing
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings.
Each of them has been appointed for an initial term of
two years which is renewed automatically for successive
term of one year subject to early termination with written
notice being served by either party. The terms of the INEDs
are also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
provisions under the Articles of Association of the Company.

The Company had received confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review
conducted by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considered each of them to be independent by reference to
the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
INEDs had been expressly identified as such in all corporate
communications of the Company that disclose the names
of Directors.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of
the Company (comprising all the Executive Directors of the
Board) who has been delegated powers and authorities to
carry out the day-to-day management and operation of the
Group, formulate business policies and make decision on
key business issues. The Executive Committee shall have
all powers and authorities of the Board except the following
matters as set out in a “Formal Schedule on matters
reserved for the Board”:

° determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

° approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

o declaring or recommending payment of dividends or
other distributions;

o approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

° approving publication of the announcement for
notifiable transactions under the Listing Rules
(except for discloseable transactions in relation to
lease transactions recognizing the right-of-use asset
according to HKFRS 16);
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° approving non-exempt connected transactions/non-
exempt continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be)) under the
Listing Rules;

° approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules;

° approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

o approving the establishment of Board committees;

° approving policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, including but not
limited to risk management policy, remuneration policy
and corporate governance policy;

o approving financial assistance to Directors;

o ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

° approving such other matters or transactions as
specified by the Board or as thought fit by the
Committee or as required by all applicable laws, rules
and regulations from time to time.

Induction, Support and Professional Development of
Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director,
the relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors,
duty of disclosure of equity and business interest in the
Group and such induction materials will also be provided
to newly appointed Directors shortly upon their appointment
as Directors. All Directors have been updated on the latest
developments of the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirement to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
There is a procedure agreed by the Board to enable
Directors, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses in order to assist them to perform their
duties to the Company.
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The Directors confirmed that they had complied with ZEEZHHER HFEEETFTCEERTANSH
the Code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ 1§ EAG5KEBEBEEEI 2] - BAA
training. During the Year, each Director had participated FE @ SEEHYEL2HBETELE 516
in continuous professional development by attending HEEBBUTNEEZEXKES TIEH HiE
seminars/workshops/reading materials on the following # %} - JJX?")E&E@?BZ:Z%HEE&&&%E i
topics to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and & [ AAA Rl I 55 5 420 8%

provided a record of training to the Company.

Name of Directors Topics of training covered by all Directors
EspR FREEEREZEZIEE
Ms. Cindy Yeung (1) Corporate governance
5 ;‘%/u\ﬁj: 1E % B /D
I\/Ir Wong Chi Fai (2) finance
mEEEEE Bt %%
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (3) industry-specific
B E L+ BEXEL
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (4) regulatory
fRE ¥ L+ EE
Mr. Liu Hing Hung
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
PREIS L+
Relationship between the Board Members ExgREEzEE

None of the members of the Board has any relationship EEZ€mK 8 v HHEFFER(BIEHE -

(including financial, business, family or other material/ %7 - B HE#ME KX HEBRER) -
relevant relations) among each other.

Directors’ insurance EECRE
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in  ANAFIEHEE AL € @ 2 AERF D
respect of any legal action against the Directors. EHEE 2 IIRETHE -
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ESCHERAREBERA
AFEEESFHFE T GRZBROT:

Directors’ attendance and time commitment

The attendance of the Directors at the meetings during the
Year is set out below:

Number of meetings attended/held

HEEE ET8ELY
2019
Corporate Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination Governance Executive General
Committee Committee Committee = Committee Committee Meeting
tEER 201918 ®
Name of Directors EE# & ERZES FMEEE REZES ZEE® HTZEE BFAg
Executive Directors
BITES
Ms. Cindy Yeung (Note 1) 5/5 - - - - 717 11
BHERaL(WE?)
Mr. Wong Chi Fai 5/5 - 1 - - 717 11
BEBLE
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (Note 2) 5/5 - - 11 11 717 11
REBELLT(HE2)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHTES
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Note 3) 5/5 3/3 - 1 11 - 11
BRIBI 2+ (Hi23)
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Note 4) 5/5 3/3 1 - 11 - 11
BEELEN74)
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne (Note 5) 5/5 3/3 1 1 - - 11
BERZL(:#25)
Total number of meetings held: 5 3 1 1 1 7 1
BrEeBE2AY:
Notes: B i -
1. Chairperson of the Executive Committee 1. WITZESXR
2 Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee 2 TtEERLZEEER
3 Chairperson of the Nomination Committee 3. REZBESXR
4. Chairman of the Audit Committee 4. BEZEE®ER
5 Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee 5 FTHEEEXE

RER  ERBATETLHRENBRT - 1R
BEEERTASTARXBA2TIRORTE
TEEBIUFATEETRIT I —RERE -

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance
with code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

EXZSCRIBEEMFZIER UETTHE
BARBZBE Y EMASEFCRAFE
RARHEGHE BITHEBE -

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company
and is satisfied that each Director had been spending
sufficient time in performing his/her responsibilities during
the Year.
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Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals. The Directors have access to the advice
and services of the Company Secretary and key officers
of the company secretarial team for ensuring that the
Board procedures, all applicable rules and regulations are
followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the
meeting agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board
in consultation with other Board members. Board meeting
notice was sent to the Directors at least 14 days prior to
each regular Board meeting. For all other board meetings,
reasonable notice was given. Board papers and related
materials which provide appropriate, accurate, clear,
complete and reliable information are generally sent to all
Directors and relevant committee members at least 3 days
before each Board meeting and Board Committee meeting
(on other agreed period) to enable the Directors to make
informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded
in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached, with draft and final versions being circulated to the
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within
reasonable time after the meetings are held. Originals of
such minutes, being kept by the Company Secretary, are
open for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable
notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be
considered by the Board which the Board has determined
to be material, the matter will be dealt with by a physical
Board meeting rather than a written resolution. That Director
will abstain from voting on the relevant Board resolution in
which he/she or any of his/her associates has a material
interest and he/she shall not be counted in the quorum
present at such Board meeting. INEDs, who, and whose
close associates, have no material interest in the transaction
are present at that Board meeting.

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee,
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Corporate Governance Committee.

EEEEBRER

EEeTHeRNEFRT EFEARE
BRARMENARNEEGKIZREZER
LR - HREBERESSREFALAAER
Z R IRB -

ERBWEZWHHT @ZFREHESS
ITFEFRAEMEFENERRE EFS
ERLBENEBRAEZTSEHEZRITH
EVUHBRATES EXBHEMESS
% TeERcEREARLAN EFE
XHERMARMKEE - EHE - BH - B
EAGERZHEEEMH—BRREBRES
sezmlhEEREeea (REMEHBEZ
HIR) BTAMEL3HAEXT2BEST NN
MZEEeXE UEEFFEHHMBEREK -

KEHEEWENMERZEERFTENKZ
ARERBEREE AP FHCLB I ESE T
ENESZESERLB I RERRTE
AR TESEER  SRIHBERRT
FleRE 2 ABEREAREERARERZ
Ae-BHRZRLBZEABARWERT
AHEFRNESRELGERNELAERNE
BREEH -

FEEHRESERTERZERTHFAES
ERRBEAZNAETR  AIZFEBING
MEEZEEEMINEARBZRETARE
MZESFHARKETABEALTABE
ANBZZHAEFTEREFENERRE - BT
SHALFEZESTEERIEATABA - B
GREREBBEARBEANGEHN B
WTEFSHFERXRESTSSH °

EEZET

SHHEFERITEREREEANER -
EFEgETRECHESTSZRTHTEZE
g ERZZBEE® ¥MWEZEe REZEE
kEEERERES -
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All members of the Audit Committee and majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out
below:

1.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

Executive Committee (set up on 22 October 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all the Executive
Directors, namely Ms. Cindy Yeung (Chairperson
of the Committee), Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Fan
Man Seung, Vanessa. The primary duties of the
Executive Committee are (a) formulating business
policies and making decision (including entering into
transactions) on matters relating to the management
and day-to-day operations of the Group; (b) making
and reviewing corporate/financial/treasury planning,
investment and operation strategy of the Group; (c)
discussing and approving any financial, borrowing,
charging and guarantee commitment to be made or
on behalf of the Group; (d) approving any transactions,
including discloseable transactions, exempt connected
transactions and non-exempt continuing connected
transactions which took place from time to time under
the master agreement(s) previously approved by the
Board/Shareholders (as the case may be) under the
Listing Rules; (e) approving any publication of relevant
announcement for discloseable transaction in relation
to lease transaction recognizing the right-of-use asset
by the Company as lessee according to HKFRS 16
“Leases”; and (f) having all power and authorities
as that the Board except those matters specifically
reserved for the full Board as set out in the “Formal
Schedule on matters reserved for and delegated by
the Board” adopted by the Board from time to time.

~
.
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Audit Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely
Mr. Liu Hing Hung (Chairman of the Committee), Ms.
Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process; (c)
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of external auditor; and (d) reviewing financial
information and overseeing the financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems.
The Audit Committee held three meetings during the
Year.

A summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of
audit process and the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group, the accuracy
and fairness of the annual consolidated financial
statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 (“Pervious Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six
months ended 30 June 2019;

i. reviewed with the senior management and
finance personnel the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems of the
Group during the Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Group
for the Previous Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment
of external auditor at the 2019 annual general
meeting (“2019 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed
the independence of the external auditor and
approved its engagement.

FEBRZEEE (R2008F6H19H B )
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Remuneration Committee (set up on 19 June 2008)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne
(Chairperson of the Committee) and Mr. Liu Hing Hung,
both being INEDs, and Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an
Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on (a) the
Company’s policy and structure of all remuneration of
Directors and senior management; (b) the remuneration
of INEDs; and (c) the specific remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of each of
the Directors for the Year are set out in note 9 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Remuneration
Committee held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the Directors’ fee and made
recommendation to the Board; and

il reviewed the current remuneration structure/
package of the Executive Directors and senior
management and recommended the Board to
approve their specific packages.

A 6 R WA

FMESE (R2008F6519H B )
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Nomination Committee (set up on 19 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne, both being
INEDs, and Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa, being the
Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee is available on the websites
of the Stock Exchange and the Company. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
(a) reviewing the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing the Board Diversity
Policy; (c) determining the policy for the nomination
of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and identifying
potential candidates for directorship; (d) assessing
the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the time
commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election
or re-designation of Directors and succession planning
for Directors. The Nomination Committee held one
meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board,;
i. reviewed the independence of the INEDs;

ii. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on
time commitment in performing their duties as
Directors; and

iv. made recommendation to the Board on the
re-election of Directors at the 2019 AGM.

4.
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Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy
aims to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest
sense in order to have a balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives to the business nature of
the Company. Selection of candidates on the Board is
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. The Nomination Committee will
also assess the merits and contribution of any Director
proposed for re-election or any candidate nominated
to be appointed as Director that will bring to the
Board against the objective criteria, with due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy
of the Group which aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board
Diversity Policy and sets out the nomination criteria
and the nomination procedures for (i) nominating new
Director to fill the casual vacancy on the Board; (ii)
making recommendation to Shareholders regarding
any Director proposed for election or re-election at
general meeting; and (iii) nomination by Shareholders
on election of new Director.

A 6 R WA
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Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 19
March 2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee (“CGC”)
consists of five members, namely Ms. Fan Man Seung,
Vanessa (Chairperson of the Committee) being an
Executive Director, Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene and Mr.
Liu Hing Hung, both being INEDs, a representative
from company secretarial function and a representative
from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the CGC is
available on the website of the Company. The primary
duties of the CGC are (a) reviewing the policies and
practices on corporate governance of the Company
("CG Policy”) and making recommendations to the
Board; (b) reviewing and monitoring the policies
and practices of the Company on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements of the Company;
(c) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings in the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
report. The CGC held one meeting during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the CGC during
the Year is set out as follows:

reviewed the CG Policy and made
recommendation to the Board;

i. reviewed the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group;
and

v. reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in Corporate Governance
Report.

5.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved
by the Board, plays an important role in supporting the
Board for ensuring good information flow within the Board
and that the Board policy and procedures are followed. She
is responsible for advising the Board on general duties and
obligations of Directors and good corporate governance
issues, and has facilitated induction and professional
development of the Directors. She has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. During the Year, the
Company Secretary had duly complied with the training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted EWJ Securities Code as its
own code of conduct regarding securities transactions on
no less exacting terms than the required standards for
securities dealings as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules regarding Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry to Directors, all of them confirmed that they
had complied with the required standard of dealings as set
out in the Model Code and EWJ Securities Code throughout
the Year.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to
prepare the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules. The management has provided all
members of the Board with monthly updates on internal
consolidated financial statements which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects as at the reporting date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies
and applied them consistently, made judgment and
estimates that are prudent and reasonable and ensured
the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a
“going concern” basis (with supporting assumptions or
qualifications as necessary) and showed a true view of the
state of affairs of the Group for the Year. The management
had provided sufficient explanation and information to the
Board on the consolidated financial statements to enable
it to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before it for approval. The auditor of
the Company had made a statement about their reporting
responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’'s Report.
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4 2 B IE h

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL JE i A B e 1A B
CONTROL

A. Goals and Objectives REREE

Internal control is fundamental to the successful
operation and day-to-day running of a business and it
assists a company in achieving its business objectives.
Internal control policies and procedures within the
Group are with the primary objective of providing
general guidance and recommendations on a basic
framework of risk management and internal control
systems (“Control Systems”).

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective
Control Systems. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risks of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s
internal control measures and procedures covering
material controls, including operational, financial
and compliance controls; and (ii) risk management
functions in the principal subsidiaries of the Company.
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B. Internal Control P B =
(1) Governance Control (1) EBEE

The control structure of the Control Systems is set REETERSNETERBEIEY W

out as follows: T

The Board =

e responsible for the Control Systems and s BERFERRSGUSEMHE
reviewing their effectiveness; B R

e oversee the Control Systems on an s UBERZECWHTHER
ongoing basis with the assistance of Audit EREEERL:

Committee;

o ensure maintenance of appropriate and

e HMRZRTETRARERAE

F:“t

effective Control Systems; RB B
e define management structure with clear lines e HIETEHBEELRERNE
of responsibility and limit of authority; and BERE: R

o determine the nature and extent of significant
risks that the Company is willing to take
in achieving the strategic objectives and
formulate the Group’s risk management
strategies.

s EBEEARAREHEBRARZ
FrBEAE 2 EXRRZEE
REE  XHEREE R
B B IR RS o
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Audit Committee

review and discuss the Control Systems with
the management annually to ensure that the
management has performed its duty to have
effective Control Systems. This discussion
includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function;

review the nature and extent of significant
risks, and the Company’s ability to respond
to changes in its business and the external
environment (as detailed in Section C(2)
below);

review and discuss annually the significant
control failings or weaknesses that are
identified and raised by the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditor
and make recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business
units, departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Control
Systems properly and ensure the Control
Systems are executed effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate
risks in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt responses to, and follow up the
findings on internal control matters raised by
internal or external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Control Systems.
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Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent
appraisal of adequacy and effectiveness of
the Control Systems in respect of all material
controls, including financial, operational and
compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review
findings or irregularities, if any, and advise
them on the implementation of necessary
steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report the results of internal audit reviews
and agreed action plans to the Audit
Committee and the Board on regular basis.

(2) Operational Control

During the Year, the management had analysed
the control environment, identified risks pertaining
thereto, and implemented various controls therein
as follows:

Approach taken: The management
conducted interviews with relevant staff,
reviewing relevant documentation of the
internal control system and evaluating
findings of any deficiencies in the design
of the Group’s internal control system,
providing recommendations for improvement
and assessing the effectiveness of
implementation of such recommendations,
where appropriate. The scope and findings
of review on the Control Systems have
been reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational
guidelines: They are in place to safeguard
the assets against unauthorized use or
disposition and ensure maintenance of
proper accounting records that are in
compliance with the applicable laws, rules
and regulations for the provision of reliable
financial that are information for internal use
and/or external publication.
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Management information system and
technology: Such use to control over the
business activities allows close tracking of
various inputs and outputs of the Company’s
business such as raw materials, inventory,
products, customer information system
and human resources. It also tracks audit
trails in the authorization system, under
which permissions and responsibility of
authorization are clearly identified and
adequate records can be maintained in the
Control Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Such
reports and analysis of each segment in the
upstream, midstream and downstream are
conducted on regular basis such that the
performance of each point of sales and each
product category can be easily accessible.

Information flow: The transparent
information flow alerts the management
promptly of any deviations. Benchmarking
with historical database and comparisons
with the same also acts as a detecting
device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: Insurance
coverage on inventory is periodically
reviewed by the management for sufficient
coverage, and to ensure compliance with
the terms and conditions of the insurance
policies. To safeguard shops’ assets,
security Control Systems are installed and
properly maintained in good condition at
each shop. In addition, tests are carried
out on a daily basis to ensure the proper
functioning of the security system.

Quality control: Diamonds are either sent
to authoritative and reliable organizations
for assessment and certification or are
tested internally with our own professional
equipment to assure the quality fulfills good
standard requirement. In order to provide
assurance of high quality products and
service and to enhance the protection of our
customers’ interest, the Company had joined
several associations and schemes.
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Proper authorization on sales discounts:
Discount policies are properly maintained
and controlled by electronic point-of-sales
Control Systems. Discount policies and
pricing strategy are reviewed from time to
time.

(3) Financial Control

proper controls are in place for the recording
of complete, accurate and timely accounting
and management information;

annual budget and quarterly forecast on all
capital and revenue items are prepared and
approved by the management before being
adopted;

the management monitors the business
activities closely and reviews monthly
financial results of operations against
budgets/forecast;

regular reports on revenue, trade
receivables’ ageing and debtors’ ageing and
internal financial reports are prepared to the
management which give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Group’s
financial performance;

monthly updates on internal financial
statements are provided to all Directors
which give a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’'s performance,
financial position and prospects in sufficient
details;

annual audit by external auditor is carried
out to ensure that the consolidated financial
statements are prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles,
the Group’s accounting policies and the
applicable laws and regulations; and

daily available fund report is reviewed to
monitor the cash flows against budgets/
forecast.
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(4) Compliance Control

The following policies and procedures are in place
to safeguard the compliance control:

° Control Systems and Procedures on
Disclosure of Inside Information to ensure,
with the assistance of an internal work team
(if required), that any material information
which comes to the knowledge of any one or
more officers should be promptly identified,
assessed and escalated, where appropriate,
for the attention of the Board. The Board
shall make timely decisions on disclosure, if
necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information
until proper dissemination of inside
information;

o Policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements
which shall be reviewed and monitored
regularly by the CGC as delegated by the
Board;

o CCT Compliance Committee is established
to monitor, control and regularly review
connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions of the Company and
ensure proper compliance with all relevant
laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
disclosure requirements;

o Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of
the Group to raise concerns, in confidence,
about possible improprieties in financial
reporting, internal control or other matters.
Such arrangement will be reviewed by
the Audit Committee which ensures that
proper arrangement is in place for fair and
independent investigation of the matters; and

o Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is
established to set out the general framework
for combating crime against money laundering
and financing of terrorism. It provides guideline
to prevent the Group’s employees and clients/
customers/suppliers/vendors/contractors from
being misused for money laundering, terrorist
financing or other financial crime and has set
out some indications of potentially suspicious
transactions/activities for employee’ reference.
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C. Risk Management

(M)

Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority. Risks are evaluated
by the Board and management based on (i) the
severity of the impact of the risk on the Group’s
financial results; (ii) the probability that the risks
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which
risks can occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will
manage the risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — The management may
identify and implement certain changes
or controls that in effect eliminate the risk
entirely.

° Risk mitigation — The management may
implement risk mitigation plan designed
to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
severity of the risk to an acceptable level
or contingency plan for possible loss
scenarios.

° Risk control and monitoring — It involves
making decisions regarding which risks
are acceptable and how to address
those that are not; Accidents and other
situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as
part of the effort to manage risks.

o Risk retention — The management may
decide that the risk rating is low enough that
the risk is acceptable level and no action
is required. The risk will continue to be
monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not
increase to an unacceptable level.
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(2) Significant Risks and Strategies

Certain significant risks have been identified
through the process of risk identification and
assessment. Such significant risks of the Group
together with their respective key strategies/
control measures are set out below:

a)

b)

Decline in tourists’ arrivals and
consumption demand resulted from
downturn in economic and unstable
social conditions and also outbreak of
contagious diseases such as COVID-19,
SARS

Facing the unfavourable market situation, the
Group:

o proactively manages the Group’s
geographical presence and develops
alternative sales channels including
e-commerce and also explores new
on-line payment solution;

o optimises business operations and
shops establishments in Hong Kong
and Mainland China;

o develops market diversification beyond
Hong Kong market; and

° decisively takes stringent cost control
measures including human resources
streamline plan, negotiation for rental
concession, retail network optimisation
exercises including shorten business
hours, shops closure plan, etc.

Damage to brand name and reputation

In addition to advertising and promotional
efforts in strengthening our brand image, the
Group has also given much attention to:

° register of brand name and major
jewellery product collection names;

o conduct customer service training and
mystery shopper reviews to ensure
sales staff service standards;
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d)

° maintain product quality by various
means from vendor selection to quality
check upon delivery from vendors; and

° brand name infringements which are
followed up by legal department until
completely resolved.

Reliance on major suppliers and watch
brands

In fact, the Group’s success largely rides on
its relationship with the world’s giant watch
suppliers and top-tier brands. The loss of
key brands may adversely affect the Group’s
business. To cope with this, the Group:

° centralizes communication with major
watch brands suppliers within top
management;

° develops and maintains mutually
beneficial and long-term relationship
with all suppliers;

o continues to build up our own jewellery
brands; and

o arranges senior sales staff inspecting
all watches delivered to shops.

Excessive and shortage of watch
inventory

The Group strives to be leading retailer
in bands that have higher consumer
appreciation and consequently stronger
profit yield. In order to achieve this leading
position, we:

o maintain close business relationship
and communication with watch
manufacturers to strive for optimal and
timely supply; and

° systematic inventory review with
updated sales forecasts to determine
appropriate inventory level.

d)

e ZEBHERHERHRE
BRNERZEERES
TRZEE  #FEME
B R

s mERBERIHER
MPRE BEETER
R

BERBEAEMAEERER
fm &

EEL AKENKINEX
R RE HL ER A SUOK B g5 Bk R
BRIBERBENEER - KX
TEmEAREEHARER
EBELETNTE - REY
R B - NEHE

o HALEBRMEMHIER
ZERERBRYA—
R

e HAREEERNL#E
KEBEMEREAE
B 1%

e RERVBRKEMR
hE R

s RHEAWEEIRE
PRE#EE 2B -

ERTEBRERER

REBNFERR/ZEERZ
BEMEY A EE R®E
5E$'J@$&Z&TJHE‘EZ%%§%
e /TEIIIARMA
A

e HERREBARFKER
EBBELBR XK
ERzERFRMHE:
&

s ETERFILNEFEESL
RTEEHERA -
NEEEEFEKFE -

00 000 00000COCEOCOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOSOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o o oo 0000000000000 0000O0
PR FEER T ARA R 2019 ¥

50



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

4 2 B IE b
e) Substandard design and production of e) THEEENKRIERITRE
jewellery 3

AEBZREDERRES
E ) Kokt S B2 E A T 35 3 F

The Group’s strategy is to yield higher gross
margin and avoid of price competition with
other market players. As such, quality of our HFRFAGBRKRE - Bk - 3K
jewellery and highly regarded designs are ELENBEREBRERNOR
vital. AAHEEER -

The Group maintains a high quality
design team with good market trend
knowledge, measured by effectiveness
of successful product design launched.

Merchandising managers, design
managers, sales operation managers
and shop representatives review all
jewellery design before approval by
chief executive officer for production.

Production vendors selection and
regular quality performance review
are conducted by merchandising
managers, technical manager and in
some cases jewellery design manager.

Merchandising managers, technical
manager and in some cases design
manager inspect jewellery product
mold and first sample before bulk
production.

All jewellery products must pass
through quality inspection by quality
control team and shop front sales team.

Scanning of diamond by equipment to
avoid receiving synthetic diamonds and
procure diamonds from international
renowned suppliers.

Higher value jewellery products are
tested by reputable and commonly
recognized third-party laboratories who
issue testing certificates.
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f)

9)

Stable supply of raw materials at fair
price

In order to maintain our timely replenishment
and new product launch, we secure reliable
sourcing by:

° adopting systematic vendor selection
process; and

° regularly reviewing and exploring more
attractive sources.

Stock loss or theft

Since our stock items are easily concealable,
the Group places very much attention on
safeguarding them with all practicable
measures as follows:

CCTV monitoring and back up;
o daily stock-take at shops;

° procedures and approval requirements
for stock transfer, and use of security
guarded service;

o security systems for stock locations;
and

° insurance coverage.

The Board will make sure that the risks facing
by the Company shall be reviewed regularly,
and the management will take suitable
measures to deal with them on ongoing
basis.

f)

9)
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D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the
Control Systems of the Group for the Year. The Audit
Committee and the Board, upon reviewing the Control
Systems and were not aware of any significant issues
that would have an adverse impact on the effectiveness
and adequacy of the Group’s operational, financial and
compliance areas of the Control Systems.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders.
The Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular
interim and final dividends (as the case may be) based
on the earnings attributable to its Shareholders after
taking into consideration of the factors stated in the policy,
including inter alia, (i) cash flow requirements for business
operations; (ii) cash available, financial liabilities and capital
commitment; (iii) market environment and challenges;
and (iv) future development and investment opportunities.
The declaration of dividends or recommendation on such
payment shall be subject to all applicable laws, rules and
regulations including but not limited to the Listing Rules,
the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“CO”) and the articles of association of the
Company.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company had established a shareholders’
communication policy and shall review it on a regular basis
to ensure its effectiveness. The Company communicates
with the Shareholders and/or potential investors mainly
in the following ways: (i) the holding of annual general
meetings (“AGM”) and extraordinary general meetings,
if any, which may be convened for specific purposes to
provide opportunities for the Shareholders to communicate
directly to the Board; (ii) the publication of announcements,
annual reports, interim reports and/or circulars as required
under the Listing Rules and press releases providing
updated information of the Group; (iii) the availability of
latest information of the Group on the Company’s website at
https://www.emperorwatchjewellery.com; (iv) the holding of
press conference(s) from time to time; and (v) meeting with
investors and analysts on a regular basis and participate
investor road show and sector conference.
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There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to
visit the Company’s website to raise enquiries through our
Investor Relations Department whose contact details are
available on the Company’s website and the “Corporate
Information and Key Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
for substantial separate issues, including re-election of
retiring Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for
the 2019 AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of other
general meetings were sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear
business days before the meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2019 AGM and chairman/members
of the Board Committees and the external auditor had
attended the 2019 AGM to answer questions from the
Shareholders. With the assistance of the Company
Secretary, the Chairperson of the meeting had explained the
procedures for conducting a poll during the meeting.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
Shareholders as required to be disclosed pursuant to the
CG Code:

Right to convene/Call general meetings

Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings may send a request to the Company pursuant to
Section 566 of the CO. The request must state the general
nature of the business to be dealt with at the meeting,
and may include the text of resolution that may properly
be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting.
Requests may consist of several documents in like form. A
request may be sent to the Company for the attention of the
Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic form
and must be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s).
Such request will be verified with the Company’s share
registrar and the Company Secretary will request the Board
to convene a general meeting within 21 days upon its
confirmation that the request is in order. Such meeting must
be held on a date not more than 28 days after the date
of the notice convening the meeting and such notice must
include notice of the resolution.
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Section 568 of the CO provides that if the Directors do not
within 21 days as stated above to call a general meeting,
the Shareholders representing more than one half of the total
voting rights of all of them, may themselves call a general
meeting, but the meeting so convened must be called for
a date not more than 3 months after the Directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting. The meeting
must be called in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which that meeting is required to be called by
the Directors. The business that may be dealt with at the
meeting includes a resolution to be dealt with at the meeting.
All reasonable expenses incurred by the Shareholders for
this purpose must be reimbursed by the Company.

Putting forward Proposals at General Meetings

Section 615 of the CO provides that (i) Shareholder(s)
representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders; or (i) at least 50 Shareholders having a
right to vote on the resolution at the AGM may request the
Company to circulate a notice of a resolution to be properly
moved or is intended to be moved at that meeting. Such
request must identify the resolution to be moved at the AGM,
must be authenticated by the relevant Shareholder(s) and
sent to the registered office of the Company for the attention
of the Company Secretary in hard copy form or in electronic
form not later than six weeks before the relevant AGM or if
later, the time when the notice of AGM is despatched.

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director are available for viewing on the
Company’s website.

Enquires from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar, Tricor
Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’ enquiries can
be directed to the Investor Relations Department of the
Company.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS A A% R S

There are no significant changes in the Company’s RAFE @ KNQF) 248458 Z 2 I BT M
constitutional documents during the Year. EREH -

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE AND % B Rl 2 g Sr Pk A T 4
REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the ‘X ZECERERBFEFEA 2 ENEH X
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the ESEZX B2 B 1E » KRBT BIEF
effectiveness of the audit process of the financial statements X ZBEMRBERE - BZEEEKE
in accordance with applicable standards. Members of the A& AREZZEEMEZe WER T3
Audit Committee were of the view that the Company's FHifT(([ZEH)EBIAL TERAEESE
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tomatsu (“Deloitte”), is HHEREZH @ P2020l RBEFAE FEEH
independent and has recommended the Board to re-appoint AARAR ZZEE - RAFER  ZHZ M0
it as the Company’s auditor at the 2020 AGM. During the AEBIREZERENE TIEZERS - M
Year, Deloitte has rendered audit services and certain AEBER B PR 2ZMESEHH 0T :
non-audit services to the Group and the remuneration paid/

payable to it by the Group is set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable
Services rendered Ff 12 it R 7§ et ENEH

HK$’000
FH& T
Audit services #% & R 7% 3,546

Non-audit services: 3F# &R 7% :

— Auditor’s letter on continuing connected transactions

B0 5 48 B 0 XX 5 B0 A BB K 20

— Review of preliminary results announcement
BHSEARE 0
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Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF
EMPEROR WATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set
out on pages 65 to 163, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (*HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional

judgement, were of most significance in our audit

consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

o S % A% o O

AREBEXFEASAZBMITNERHE+
ERAHHGEAVBRRTREBNER °
AEZBEMITRBEREREAV BT RREIE I
EEEMBUTERER  MAERHEERSE
BERER -

of the

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter

AEEXREE
Valuation of inventories — Goods held for resale
7E — FIFEERSZ215E

We identified the valuation of inventories — goods
held for resale as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, combined with the judgements
associated with determining the amount of allowance
for inventories.

AZEMTHEFE - HIFEERm2HER—EN
REZEE REACREARBEGSVBHRRESEM
ETHOEE MPNEETFERGSEBAIHE -

In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories —
goods held for resale, it is the Group’s policy to review
the net realisable value of inventories periodically
with reference to the condition of the items and the
market condition. The management reviews regularly
the suitability of the allowance policy and the amount
of allowance for inventories that are based on the
estimation by considering factors as detailed in the
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the allowance for inventories. In addition,
the management also appoints an independent
professional gemmologist to perform valuation on
certain jewellery items as reference for allowance
consideration.

RiEAEE -BEEERmeBEeRE . H5E
ZBERZ2EZBHEMALTAEHBRTFE 2 &
WFE - ERENREBERGESMBEREKRM T47HEH
FERBZEBRAERMEZAT T8RS BHEBER
ZHEBUMRGFEREBSRE U BEEENTEZE %
BUBXBELETMARE THRERBETHEER
BHEEREZ2E -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMTUNEEARERSEH

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of valuation of inventories — goods
held for resale included:
RZEMTHEREE - BEEERm2fERE T
ZRRFBE:

e Obtaining an understanding of management’s
process of reviewing and evaluating net realisable
value of inventories;

HEEEERA LG FENERFEZER:

e FEvaluating the allowance policy adopted by
the management with reference to current
market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies,
inventory realisation plan, ageing and conditions
of inventories;

SERTHN  BERBAHEEN  TEBX
NEmR FEERAE  FEOKREK KRG
EEEMRANBEBRR:

e Evaluating net realisable value of inventories
assessed by management, on a sample basis, to
the selling prices of similar products;
ETHEAA AT EHEEEBNEABREAE®D
ZHEEBENTFENAEIERFE:
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter

HAREEZEER

o S % A% o JHL (42

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

AEREMTUNEEARERER

Valuation of inventories — Goods held for resale (Continued)

FE — FIFBEERR2Z14E (&)

As disclosed in notes 4 and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 December 2019, the
carrying amount of inventories — goods held for
resale is HK$3,103,458,000, net of allowance of
HK$55,942,000, which represents 69% of the net
assets of the Group.

iR A B S R R MY sE4 5T #E B 0 2019412 A31
B 78 -#FFEEEEm e BREEA3,103,458,000%
7T BB ES5,942,0008 T - HER BEEEE
F1E 269% °

Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent professional
gemmologist and obtaining an understanding of
the scope of work and the terms of engagement;
and

AEBIEXBEAEEMs T ® e W REHEIT
WHEREE THE&E & R R

Understanding the valuation process carried out
by the independent professional gemmologist

on selected jewellery items and checking the
carrying amounts of selected jewellery items to
the jewellery appraisal report to test these were
recorded at lower of cost and net realisable value.
R E Y EXEAETMAMAGEREREER
WEFAERRKENERETRBEEREERR
FEEMNMERFZEEE  BRRBREETRAR
BRI FE I RIEELE -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error.

oAb %5 R
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF K #iMFEZEZ M BEHRFEZEHEE)
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise 1RIEFBEA LR ETEZE KX EEM1T

professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism EHEEHE  HREBEEZBETPRIFTEE
throughout the audit. We also: BEEEREE o NAZBADTIN :

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit in the
independent auditor’s report is Ka-Lai Man.

resulting

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A o 1 A B A 4 T WL A i R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

B E2019F12A31H IEF &
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
Bt 3 THERT FET
Revenue N 5 4,110,117 4,722,248
Cost of sales FiER==I %N (2,846,138) (3,417,722)
Gross profit E 1,263,979 1,304,526
Other income H b I A 6 5,952 11,240
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHAX (930,365) (841,934)
Administrative expenses THRAZ (136,504) (142,860)
Other gains or losses H b Uy 55 ok B5 48 (26,802) (8,624)
Finance costs Bl & B AR 7 (56,936) (4,095)
Profit before tax B 5t A 4 A 8 119,324 318,253
Taxation 18 10 (29,293) (53,969)
Profit for the year FERF 90,031 264,284
Other comprehensive expense FEEMREMRAX
for the year
Item that may be reclassified HEAEES D HE
subsequently to profit or loss: HBaw ZHA -
Exchange differences arising on BMEBINEREE
translation of foreign operations 2 & H Z & (13,132) (27,435)
Total comprehensive income RNARIHEA ANEAG
for the year and attributable FEZEBARLE
to owners of the Company 76,899 236,849
Earnings per share — basic BRAEMN - EX 12 1.33 HK centsi&{li 3.87 HK cents/# ll
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Ak B 5 IR DL AR

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
72019412 431H

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 51 FERT FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI BEREE 13 1,850,058 1,923,019
Right-of-use assets FREEE 14 565,779 -
Rental deposits Hekse 116,721 126,037
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEYI 3 - R
property, plant and equipment REzENERS 1,541 18,435
Deferred tax assets RIEFIEEE 23 13,086 5,161
2,547,185 2,072,652
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FE 15 3,148,350 3,096,504
Right to returned goods asset REREE 21 3,167 2,462
Receivables, deposits and FEEHSZ/TAIE T;z/i\& 16
prepayments ICERE 144,067 165,564
Amounts due from related companies & I 83 i& K18 22 3,924 5,034
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERS 17 239,909 627,256
3,539,417 3,896,820
Current liabilities REAE
Payables and accrued charges FENRIBREGFER 18 117,186 292,720
Lease liabilities HEARE 19 286,327 -
Contract liabilities S ON=E 20 11,957 10,293
Refund liabilities BRRAE 21 4,219 3,415
Amounts due to related companies R NREERE N ] 22 1,030 4,072
Taxation payable FE A B 18 65,683 36,350
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 172,900 561,822
659,302 908,672
Net current assets RBEEFE 2,880,115 2,988,148
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A o W B K DR R

AT 31 DECEMBER 2019
2019412 A31H

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T FET FET
Non-current liabilities kREBEEB
Deferred tax liabilities REHIERE 23 3,269 1,107
Lease liabilities HEARE 19 332,970 -
Bank borrowings RITEE 24 618,034 594,673
954,273 595,780
Net assets EEFRE 4,473,027 4,465,020
Capital and reserves EXRfFE
Share capital Ji% 7 25 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserves & 26 988,875 980,868
Total equity fe 4,473,027 4,465,020

The consolidated financial statements on pages 65 to 163 were % 65H £ F163H 2 47 & M 15 i & 2 7 2020F
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors 3A30H#E & E& it £ L IRHETIZ - W H T 5

on 30 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf by: EERREE:
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
BHER BEEXE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

22 /AN 3L Lxb
AR EER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
Share Merger Other Capital Translation Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Tota
R & aftREE Hitt EXfE EXfE REER Foh
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER FERT TER TER TER FERT TER
(note 26(a)) (note 26(b)) (note 26(c))
(HzF26(a)) (KiEE26(b)) (B aF26(c))
At 1 January 2018 2018 F1A1H 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 2,509 1,276,693 4,366,685
Profit for the year FERF - - - - - 264284 264,284
Exchange differences arising on BMEBNEBEE L
translation of foreign operations ERLESE - - - - (27,435) - (27435)
Total comprehensive (expense) FE2EFERZRA
income for the year k) - - - - (27.435) 264,284 236,849
Final dividend recognised and 0176 BR L REBRE
paid for 2017 (note 11) CE - - - - - (39,864)  (39,864)
Interim dividend recognised and 2018 R ZAHRE
paid for 2018 (note 11) CE - - - - - (47456)  (47,456)
Repurchase of ordinary shares [e] s % 3 i (PfF 5.25)
(note 25) - - - - - (51194)  (51194)
At 31 December 2018 2018124310 3,484,152 (873,003) (26,195) 2,529 (24,926) 1,402,463 4,465,020
Impact on initial application of BERRBEAENBR
HKFRS 16 (note 2) RN ivd2 -
(Ft7E2) - - - - - (7.877)  (7.877)
At 1 January 2019 #2019%181R 3,484,152 (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (24,926) 1,394,586 4,457,143
Profit for the year FERH = = = - - 90,031 90,031
Exchange differences arising on BMEBNEBEE L
translation of foreign operations EXESR - = = = (13,132) - (13,132
Total comprehensive (expense) FE2E(RX)
income for the year LONE | = = = - (13,132) 90,031 76,899
Final dividend recognised and paid 2018 F R 2
for 2018 (note 11) RERR B (M 3E11) - - - - - (37,287) (37,287)
Interim dividend recognised and 20195 BRZ
paid for 2019 (note 11) RE RS (1) = = = = - (23,728)  (23,728)
At 31 December 2019 K2019512 4318 3484152  (373,003) (26,195) 2,529 (38,058) 1,423,602 4,473,027
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HEBRERER

HZE2019F12A31A LFE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES Pl S
Profit before tax B B4 A 5 119,324 318,253
Adjustments for: -
Allowance (reversal of allowance) FEREEERRD)
for inventories 843 (14,472)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME HMERRETE 136,679 33,851
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESETE 308,737 -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of Y WS REE
property, plant and equipment HRBEEE 3,406 1,761
Loss on disposal/write-off of BE T E - KR
property, plant and equipment kEBzEBE 3,559 2,994
Gain arising from termination of leases MAKIEFTEE 2 W& (561) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of right- MEREEERER
of-use assets B B8 16,804 -
(Reversal of) allowance for credit losses FEEBEREGD) (3,837) 4,519
Interest income B A (4,572) (10,393)
Interest expense B 56,936 4,095
Operating cash flows before movements in RET& SEAH 2
working capital g fﬁéumi 637,318 340,608
Increase in inventories FE .z 8 (62,819) (449,825)
Increase in right to returned goods asset LE%%Fi i (705) (2,462)
Decrease in receivables, deposits and JEW IR « ke RTER
prepayments B /DZ L 28,720 14,346
Decrease (increase) in amounts due JFE Uit B8 38 A B R IE R
from related companies (3% hn) 1,110 (5,034)
(Decrease) increase in payables FERTRIE R FEEtE A OB L)
and accrued charges 1 51 (159,474) 20,373
Increase (decrease) in contract liabilities R aEEMmOR D) 1,664 (5,484)
Increase in refund liabilities BB EEM 804 3,415
Decrease in amounts due to related companies J& 1 B 38 A 7 F0 I8 & (3,042) (74)
Net cash generated from (used in) operations KERME (A 2ReF8E 443,576 (84,137)
Income taxes paid ERET SR (5,762) (30,536)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) OPERATING REXEKMB (A2
ACTIVITIES Be 437,814 (114,673)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBHESWMER
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TER FHET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZED
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, UWEEHH « B LK EZ
plant and equipment EffiEs (863) (17,493)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME HBERZEZ
plant and equipment Fr 15 3838 328 ~
Purchase of property, plant BEME - %%%& v
and equipment (53,655) (84,279)
Placement of time deposits with BARZBHEA=MAN L
original maturity over three months B 7€ HA 17 3K - (134,850)
Withdrawal of time deposits with RRRIBEAE=ZEANU L
original maturity over three months #)5E BR 1T 3K - 215,879
Interest received B U F B 1,335 10,393
Net cash outflow arising on WHEWBARIFIEEL 2
acquisition of subsidiaries Rent #8 27 - (1,148,471)
NET CASH USED IN RETBFAZESEEH
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (52,855) (1,158,821)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Dividends paid EfRE (61,015) (87,320)
Repurchase of shares 6] B 3 18 AR - (51,194)
Bank borrowings raised EEBZRITEE 35 1,079,071 522,745
Repayments of bank borrowings EEWRITEE 35 (1,444,632) (3,256)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHEAR 35 (286,531) -
Interest paid =ERAIES] 35 (56,936) (4,095)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BEEH (TR FES
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REeFE (770,043) 376,880
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH B &RBEEZEYR D
EQUIVALENTS FH (385,084) (896,614)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FUZESRRESEEY
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 627,256 1,532,051
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 4| [ & & &) » 5 £ (2,263) (8,181)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZBERRESEEY
AT THE END OF THE YEAR, (HRTEBRE SR R)
REPRESENTED BY BANK
BALANCES AND CASH 239,909 627,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

1.

GENERAL

Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (the “Company”) is a
public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its immediate holding
company is Emperor Watch & Jewellery Group Holdings
Limited (“Emperor W&J Holdings”) which is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”"). The directors of
the Company (the “Directors”) consider that its ultimate
holding company is Albert Yeung Watch & Jewellery
Holdings Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI. The
address of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company is 25/F, Emperor Group Centre,
288 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 37.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as “the Group”) have applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to
HKAS 19

Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates and

HKAS 28 Joint Ventures
Amendments to Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 -
HKFRSs 2017 Cycle

— B IH
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MREEFMARL 2 ARERRR - H
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ZMKZ AR c ARREZ(EEDR
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HEERBERRAR RABERZHEST
ML 2RF - KRB ZEFMPEERE K
TELEM I REBETEEF
Eo88R R B EE AP L5 o

ARABR—HREZERAA - EWB A
A2 EREBEN ST ©

HEPBHmRABTIETDEZ2®R &
MR ARBIZYEEH -

VB FHL 5B W B K846 T A 4 S 5 e o B
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EEVBRELENZ BB B HRELER
EE] AN 2015F 220174
BEZFERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B B iR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 LEASES

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in the
current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
("HKAS 177), and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has applied the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16
in assessing whether a contract contains a lease to all
contracts at transition.

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019.

As at 1 January 2019, the Group recognised additional
lease liabilities and measured right-of-use assets at the
carrying amounts as if HKFRS 16 had been applied
since commencement dates, but discounted using the
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application by applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(i) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening retained profits
and comparative information has not been restated.

HE 97 4T e 46 6 75 9 B 9 e
B (T 9 B 5 90 4 e 1)) 42)
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B/ 488
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AREBRAFEEREAET BV HRE
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ERREFEGHERETRIEEINEFE
SR ERIE7R ) MR E -

HEREZH

AEBERBEE LY HHREERF165
FEMBAEERBEENTESE - AFEM
EBEMEzANREREHEE -

ERBEEA

AEBCBYPERSBVIEREERSE
1657 Rt £ E X ERBH (20194
1A1R) R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease
basis, to the extent relevant to the respective lease
contracts:

i. relied on the assessment of whether leases
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment review;

ii. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for leases with lease term ends within
12 months of the date of initial application;

iii. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

iv. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining terms for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rates for leases of properties in
Hong Kong, Macau, The People Republic of China
excluding Hong Kong and Macau (“PRC”) and other
regions in Asia Pacific (as defined in note 5) were
determined on a portfolio basis; and

2 used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options.

Y FEL 9T 5T e A8 A T A o B 2 o e
SUJ ([ 8 1 5 e oo R B D) ()
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BBERE BT EREI7THRZ
H EABEREAEEEERE
EZHNBRTE FIHEEHERTE
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i. EEAUEHNEXERBHESS
1R2EARNERNEERAEREE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T

o W 5 i 3% B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE

MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)
As a lessee (Continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average

WE F 307 5T T SR 5T 7 vk W 6 9 2
R (7 v B 25 b R 1) D) (48)

FEERFEROHFITREEBTERY
BHREER(E)

77 8 B B R 16 9 B (78)
ERABEA(E)

ERREAMOBREEHENHENE
EaER ZISEIEEAE//\FEEHEIHHFE

AEEEEERNEEERNE - EH
HY 0 19 38 & A8 KR R 53.0% ©

incremental borrowing rate applied is 3.0%.

At 1 January

2019
H2019F181H
HK$’000
TERT
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 2018512 A31H & ~
31 December 2018 TR E R 558,897
Lease liabilities discounted at REEEEEENERTREZ
relevant incremental borrowing rates MEARE 542,174
Add: Termination options reasonably certain m:aB2wEHT~TFITEZ
not to be exercised R EEE 28,050
Less: Recognition exemption — short-term leases B oERHE—RHEE (55,709)
Less: Value-Added Tax (“VAT”) on rent B HERER(EER]) (3,835)
Less: Adjustments for contracts reassessed based & @ %f F & 7 B 7% ) & £ A
on definition of lease under HKFRS 16 F16EENERM
BN S RMMERE (30,399)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1R 2 E ARG 480,281
Analysed as DR
Current mEE D 238,635
Non-current FER B AL 241,646
480,281
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

H E2019F12A31HILFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. JEH B 5T & 845 5T & s B % i
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING HI ([ v o 5 ok 42 R ) (48)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE FAEERAIERNOFITIRLETERY
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR BHREER (Z)
(Continued)
HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued) TBMBERLERFEIcHE R E(E)
As a lessee (Continued) EBEABA(E)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as R2019F1ABHERFERAEEENREE
at 1 January 2019 comprises the following: BENLT

Right-of-use assets

EREEE
HK$'000
FET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating lease recognised JE A& 7 B 7% o 5 22 Al 51657 14 T
upon application of HKFRS 16 RUELZHMEEHANTAELE 461,081
The following adjustments were made to the amounts AT &Y R2019F1A1B 2 56 Wik R
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position 25 FHRRAZSBIEL CHE - /xﬁ XE
at 1 January 2019. Line items that were not affected by the FECEHYITEBEEA
changes have not been included.
Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
reported at 31 HKFRS 16 at
December 2018 Adjustments 1 January 2019
H2019F151H
LRI EBMBEREE
201812 A31H BIZ165RH T 2
EWH EREE EERS REE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHET TR
Non-current Assets (RBEE
Right-of-use assets CRAEEE - 461,081 461,081
Rental deposits Heke (a) 126,037 (4,737) 121,300
Current Liabilities REBAE
Payables and accrued charge  [ENEEFR L EFEA (b) 292,720 (16,060) 276,660
Lease liabilities HEaE - 238,635 238,635
Non-current liabilities *¥rRBEE
Lease liabilities HERaE - 241,646 241,646
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Reserves & 980,868 (7,877) 972,991
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B B iR M R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2.
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs THAT ARE
MANDATORILY EFFECTIVE FOR THE CURRENT YEAR
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (Continued)

As a lessee (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations
under leases to which HKAS 17 applied. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such deposits
are not payments relating to the right to use of the underlying
assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting effect
at transition. Accordingly, HK$4,737,000 was adjusted to
refundable rental deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

(b) Rent free period

These relate to accrued lease liabilities for leases of
properties in which the lessors provided rent-free period. The
carrying amount of the lease incentive liabilities under trade
and other payables as at 1 January 2019 was adjusted to
retained profits at transition.

Lease payments increase progressively over lease terms.

These relate to accrued lease liabilities of several operating
leases for leases of retail shops in which the rentals increase
progressively by fixed annual percentage. The carrying
amount of the accrued lease liabilities under trade and other
payables as at 1 January 2019 was adjusted to retained
profits at transition.

(c) In view of temporary differences relating to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are insignificant as at 1 January 2019, no
deferred taxation is recognised in the consolidated financial
statements upon application of HKFRS 16.

(d)  For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating
activities under indirect method for the year ended 31
December 2019, movements in working capital have been
computed based on opening consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2019 as disclosed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts'

Amendments to Definition of a Business?

Y FEL 9T 5T e A8 A T A o B 2 o e
SUJ ([ 8 1 5 e oo R B D) ()

EEMBEHRERZHTREBITER
Bt AR R

REBEWEREFEAATERMERARE
MR RRET T AV B REER:

/%Eﬁﬁ&#& —% lJ 1% AAIZIIZ !
FATR

BEAUHmREEDN XH TR

N

HKFRS 3 FE35 2 BRI A
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BBV MEERE & HEELRE
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its 1058 &\ B &5t NEHEE T E
Associate or Joint Venture® A RIS 285 &= A
EHIWN & ES

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material*

BEEGFERER EAZER

and HKAS 8 EB G ERE
8% ZEF] A
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BB REERE FREEF

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021

2 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of
the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

9’:7)7, E/ = u+’&
Bl 395 R BB
B 75 s 5 R E7
S ZAEE] AR

! M2021F1A1AR R 2kt 2 FEBHEE
Eo4

2 MREBEHREERBREER  EhH
HEIAmM2020F1 A1E Sk v B 2 & 1A
FEHARMMBL 2%

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to 8 R TFTEE AR 2E G 2FEBRRE
be determined oy

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 4 F2020F1 A1 2 & A 2 FE B A&
2020 4

In addition to the above new and amendments to
HKFRSs, a revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting was issued in 2018. Its consequential
amendments, the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

The Directors anticipate that the application of all new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on
the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable
future.

Br El 3R] RSB ET B BB k& 2R
G EAS ET BE 7S 3R 5 B S HE 22 72018 4F
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis at the end of each
reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes
into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing
transactions that are accounted for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 (since 1 January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before
application of HKFRS 16), and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value-in-
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

3.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the Group can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from
the date the Group gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATION INVOLVING BUSINESSES UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements items of the combining businesses in
which the common control combination occurs as if they
had been consolidated from the date when the combining
businesses first came under the control of the controlling

party.

The net assets of the consolidated entities are
consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the
time of common control combination.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

° the Group’s performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A receivable represents the Group’s unconditional right
to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.
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n‘/T

o W 5 i 3% B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

CONTRACTS WITH MULTIPLE PERFORMANCE
OBLIGATIONS (INCLUDING ALLOCATION OF
TRANSACTION PRICE)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, including customer loyalty programme,
the Group allocates the transaction price to each
performance obligation on a relative stand-alone selling
price basis, except for the allocation of discounts and
variable consideration.

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or
service underlying each performance obligation is
determined at contract inception. It represents the price at
which the Group would sell a promised good or service
separately to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price
is not directly observable, the Group estimates it using
appropriate techniques such that the transaction price
ultimately allocated to any performance obligation reflects
the amount of consideration to which the Group expects
to be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised
goods or services to the customer.

VARIABLE CONSIDERATION

For contracts that contain variable consideration including
the customers’ right to return goods, the Group estimates
the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled
using the expected value method.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is
included in the transaction price only to the extent that
it is highly probable that such an inclusion will not result
in a significant revenue reversal in the future when the
uncertainty associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates
the estimated transaction price (including updating
its assessment of whether an estimate of variable
consideration is constrained) to represent faithfully the
circumstances present at the end of the reporting period
and the changes in circumstances during the reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

REFUND LIABILITIES

The Group recognises a refund liability if the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration
received from customers.

SALES WITH A RIGHT OF RETURN/EXCHANGE

For a sale of products with a right of return/exchange
for dissimilar products, the Group recognises all of the
following:

(a) revenue for the transferred products in the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled (therefore, revenue would not be recognised
for the products expected to be returned/
exchanged);

(b) a refund liability/contract liability; and

() an asset (and corresponding adjustment to cost
of sales) for its right to recover products from
customers.

PRINCIPAL VERSUS AGENT

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL VERSUS AGENT (Continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service
by another party. In this case, the Group does not control
the specified good or service provided by another party
before that good or service is transferred to the customer.
When the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue
in the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified
goods or services to be provided by the other party.

LEASES

DEFINITION OF A LEASE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains
a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
prices.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

DEFINITION OF A LEASE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2) (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract (Continued)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis
when the Group reasonably expects that the effects on
the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2) (Continued)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the
lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date; and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2) (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
not included in the measurement of lease liabilities and
right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

liabilities are

After the commencement date, lease

adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-

use assets) whenever the lease payments change due
to changes in market rental rates following a market
rent review in which cases the related lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments
using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

3.

FEEE R (E)

HEE)

A 56 8] fF 75 7K F A (1R 3% Wi i 2o 2t 2 368
W% i M A o R O A 5 16 9E
#) (&)

HEAME (%)
e MWMARBAESTEITEERE
AIRBEEEENTEE R

e WEHMKRAKESTHEEREEL

IFHEE R AK I BT 2
# o
RETSEG S E TSR

FERARAEER T SHEHETE - T%
BEHEHILEMEZAZEENKL

B A AHERBEMEREEESE X
Eﬁ%ﬁ X2 E BN R 2 B A
D/L‘/\ % Ffﬁ i

REBBEIE - EEEE%LﬁMﬂ
REEMNKELAR - EHRENK
ﬁm%ﬂﬁéﬁém%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
g REBRAT HEBEAREERY
R ERFE BB EEITHENRNE
Fiste  AIASEEFTERERE (L
REBEREEEFERERAR) -

AEERGFEAMBMAXRAKRHEHERR
2 RHEFIER -

00 000 00000OCOCOCOEOOOEOEOGOEONOOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o oo 0o o000 0000000000000 0O0O0
W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

87



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (UPON APPLICATION OF
HKFRS 16 IN ACCORDANCE WITH TRANSITIONS
IN NOTE 2) (Continued)

Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FEEGFBR(E)
(Continued)
LEASES (Continued) HE(E)

THE GROUP AS LESSEE (PRIOR TO 1 JANUARY
2019)

Lease modifications (Continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent
rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Lease incentives relating to operating leases are
considered as integral part of lease payments, the
aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on
monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely
to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in
the foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity
to profit or loss on disposal.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income because of income or
expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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3.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to the leasing
transaction as a whole. Temporary differences relating
to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are assessed
on a net basis. Excess of depreciation on right-of-use
assets over the lease payments for the principal portion
of lease liabilities resulting in net deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
plans, the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and state-
managed retirement benefit schemes, are recognised
as an expense when employees have rendered service
entiting them to contributions.
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3.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries and annual leave) after
deducting any amount already paid.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
AND BUILDING

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is
presented as “right-of-use assets” (upon application
of HKFRS 16) or “prepaid lease payments” (before
application of HKFRS 16) in the consolidated statement
of financial position. When the consideration cannot be
allocated reliably between non-lease building element
and undivided interest in the underlying leasehold land,
the entire properties are classified as property, plant and
equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for a
prospective basis.

3.

W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

93

FEEE R (E)

EHEEREA

RHEEEMNDREEBRMERSGR AN
BIXNZAMBBERMNEAER - B
MHMEERMNOER RS -

BB ZETREMN (P ITERFE LFR)
DRMBERENEBREREE -

WE - R RBREBRERRNRERER R
FERZRFREEEMB)RNGEE BB
AR AR ©

il 5 1 b R #E 5 B 1 it

AEBEELMERBEERNF(BREHE
ETHREFRD)E - 2BREZVSG
EREZHEBAREERLINEEHM
ELMEFED -

AR RIRRE N SR aEAR  HEL
ERREEMBERRNRPUERESR
EIRRABTBMIE RS ERF165ER)
KFANHENKIEAE LY HREE
AIZE165RAT) 251 » W RETEEED
EFHERBFHOMBEHREL Y
RIFDHEDET - 2HVEINDBR/YE
We2s MR o

FERBEREIREENGBAAEAF
HAGE 3K HL R R R e B E HERR o AT Al
ERFEH MAKBEMFENESES
ERMEAEERERZ  GNERNED
FERBAAREEAR -

ANNUALREPORT2019 o e o 0000000000000 00000




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
AND BUILDING (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
profit or loss.

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an individual asset individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or a cash-generating
unit for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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3.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount of
an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) unit in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories is determined on a
weighted average basis for gold and specific identification
basis for watches and other jewellery items depending
on the nature of the inventory. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated cost of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.

PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).

RESTORATION PROVISIONS

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of
the lease at the directors’ best estimate of the expenditure
that would be required to restore the assets, estimates are
regularly reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new
circumstances.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts
with Customers. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

3.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-impaired.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, other receivables, amounts
due from related companies, rental deposits and bank
balances), which are subject to impairment under HKFRS
9. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after
the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast
of future conditions.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. FEGHEIBURE)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) SRMIA(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) & ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cHEERMEE)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings.

For other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
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has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial ERRENEHEARARBEZEIEN - A&
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The HEERT - AEEER ’E\H’ﬁﬁﬁﬂfgﬁiﬁ

assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk

B ECHERENEREEEBAME
B2/ ER B R TR ARELE

of a default occurring since initial recognition. Azt ERETRBELMNME
(i) Significant increase in credit risk () 15EEfEEEN
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased R 1E E R b B 416 1 R LA K
significantly since initial recognition, the Group ERBEELENE AEEHEMT

compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
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assessment, the Group considers both quantitative B E%ﬁ/ﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁ$jﬁri
and qualitative information that is reasonable and DR EGEZBERLBIAETLE
supportable, including historical experience and Kt o

forward-looking information that is available without

undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into BEEms  AHEERRESEE
account when assessing whether credit risk has EmEgERNUATER:

increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B LFE
3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES FEFFBUOR (&)
(Continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) SRMIA(E)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) & ()
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) cHEERMEE)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued) () EERBEZEENE)

o existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the reporting date. A debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default,
i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term
and iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations. The Group
considers a debt instrument to have low credit risk
when it has an internal or external credit rating
of ‘investment grade’ as per globally understood
definitions.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is
credit-impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii) ~ Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in
the case of trade receivables from contracts with
customers when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

v)

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the following
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments;
° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

3.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments
is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables, amounts due to related companies and bank
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

DERECOGNITION

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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S5 % M A E BTG 2 8K 0 SR
BT S HEE AR E
LRBEBEE -

REILERRBHERAINERZEREE
- EEREESRDKREERKE ZMN
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F12A31B L FE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the Directors are
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

fili B A 2 PR 2 BRI

AIERM GE3AT &l 2 N B & 5T RS
EEAMNREMKRIEMBR 2EE
REBEREEELGHFTEREBRR - EFf L
HERXIDABELR LA SBERL
HAEAER BERGRAEEIR
A

BErRAERREFERS - WA S5
MEHERTRFEZ MM - E\'Jﬁ%b.ﬂa
FEERIEAHEER - WEBBER
TEEH TRERKRHHE MBAHE
FIEEERT BE MR K AR R -

UTREARRKENEEZRR  ARRE
BEMAREA I EERARZ2IERR A
HT—EMBRFENEERAGZERE
BErESERERNAENER -

ALLOWANCE FOR INVENTORIES FERAE
In estimating the amount of allowance for inventories — REAEFEE—RHIFEElmcBES

goods held for resale, it is the Group’s policy to review
the net realisable value of inventories periodically with
reference to the condition of the items and the market
condition. The management of the Group reviews
regularly the suitability of allowance policy and estimates
the amount of allowance for inventories based primarily
current market conditions, historical and current sales
information, pricing policy and strategies, inventory
realisation plan, as well as the ageing and conditions of
inventories to identify slow-moving items. In addition, the
management also appoints an independent professional
gemmologist to perform valuation on certain jewellery
items as reference for allowance consideration. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of
the reporting period and makes allowance. When the
subsequent estimated amount of allowance for inventories
is less than the original cost, a material allowance may
arise. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
inventories for goods held for resale is HK$3,103,458,000
(net of allowance for inventories of HK$55,942,000) (31
December 2018: HK$3,067,443,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$55,459,000)).

BB COALEBEZHREAL2EZSBEMRR
EmATEHRIFTEZAZEFE -~
EEEEETHEMBERREZEE
WEFERBEAMMN BARBERKHESE
R TEBRRRKE TEZHE
AR & R 0 AT Rtk O LA RS B 85 18
BREMmmarTFERERE - I B
BNZE—Z2BUEEELETMAY
ETHEBEBENTHBEEABEZSEZ
2 AEERERPRETEERS
WEHEE EEEAGTEZHEFBRER
HIORERERAR  AJeEL T RE
& > R2019F12A31H » HiF B EFE M
2 F &R {E A3,103,458,0005 7T (F1 B
F & B #55,942,000/% 7T (201812 A 31
H :3,067,443,000/ Jr © M 17 & & &
55,459,000/ 7T ) °

00 000 00000OCOCOCOEOOOEOEOGOEONOOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o oo 0o o000 0000000000000 0O0O0
W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

105



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/T

o W 5 i 3% B R

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT
AND EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. In
determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group has
to exercise judgment and make estimation, particularly
in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred or any
indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”)
to which the assets belongs. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
with impairment indicators are HK$47,465,000 and
HK$14,148,000 (2018: HK$Nil and HK$1,761,000)
respectively. During the year, impairment losses of
HK$16,804,000 and HK$3,406,000 (2018: HK$Nil and
HK$1,761,000) have been recognised on right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment respectively.

DEFERRED TAX ASSET

As at 31 December 2019, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax losses of HK$137,025,000 (2018:
HK$185,081,000) for certain operating subsidiaries due
to the unpredictability of future profit streams for these
subsidiaries. The realisability of the deferred tax asset
mainly depends on whether sufficient future profits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future. If the future profit streams become predictable in
the future, a deferred tax asset will be recognised to the
extent that future taxable profits will be available in the
future.

fli FHA R R R 2 BRI ()

ME BERRBURERABREE 24
FHRE

ME BERBRBEAREREEELEK
oM BT EREZ R REBERM
Bk -HEFT-—HEERSESLRE
W NEEZAEL ARG SHEF
M- (WREEEHELESBENERE
ZEEBENTR: QBEENKRHEER
BEEAUARKEEERF  BRFERE
B ARBREEEREEMTOHRKR
é//m%m/%iﬁfﬁﬁ( )H—rﬁﬁﬁﬁ“ﬁ?rT
WE2EMBEETEZRARX(BIERERE
FEOR R BRI BRIR ) o i S Be 4 51 & Rl
EEBRREEREEE)ZAIWEERE K
SHRAGHZEEMBNREEAEM
ZAYEl R - HIEHARE KA (2
FREREFERMEIR R REK)ET
PFeEAEBREAAFMANFER
{Eo

2019512 A31H © B IR E U & 0 F A
BEENYE BELRKBEZEEE
3 Bl A 47,465,000 7T }14,148,0007% 7T
(20184 : BB 7T} 1,761,00058 7T ) ° AN
" > 16,804,000/ Jt 13,406,000/ 7T
(20184 : T 7 7T }1,761,0007% 7T) &Y 3
BEEESHNBERAFAEEENDE
2SR BB o

ELEREAEE

R2019F12A31H R AL TEHH T
LB EB AR R A G A HOR - E itk I &
Bz EM B AR 2 IHE E 8137,025,000
7 7T (20184F : 185,081,000/ 7T) 7 2 i
HEFRIBEEE - ERECHBEEETES
BEhERMER K @A e K o] ¢ 7 A
ZERBHERZEME o WA BRI ET
REHEF KR - BIERELEHBEE -
MEARTAEEBERRERT ZM AR -
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5.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents sales of products to retail customers
and commission income from services provided.

For sales of products to retail customers, revenue is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred,
being at the point the customer purchases the goods at
the retail shop. Payment of the transaction price is due
immediately at the point the customer purchases the
goods.

For commission income, revenue is recognised when
it expects to be entitled in exchange for arranging for
the specified goods provided by the other party to the
customers at the retail shop.

All revenue are recognised at a point in time.

Information reported to the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), the Executive Director and Chief Executive of
the Group, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the
locations of the operations. This is also the basis upon
which the Group is arranged and organised. The Group’s
operating segments under HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
are operations located in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC
and other regions in Asia Pacific (representing Singapore
and Malaysia). The revenue generated by each of the
operating segments is mainly derived from sales of watch
and jewellery. No operating segments identified by the
CODM have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

5.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA K EE R (E)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and UTEAREERAREECTZH LK
results by reportable and operating segment: ED DM
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31B L EE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination  Consolidated
i ] FE TAHMBE 85 RE
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TER TERT TER TER
Revenue A
External sales INRIHE 2,759,443 304,997 560,612 483,736 = 4,108,788
Inter-segment sales* DEEEE" 80,923 9,343 1,396 1,529 (93,191) -
Commission income B WA 1,234 95 - - - 1,329
2,841,600 314,435 562,008 485,265 (93,191) 4,110,117
* Inter-segment sales D EREEE R
are charged at cost BN 4
Segment profit 5 &0 A 199,774 32,051 43,481 58,308 = 333,614
Unallocated other income & 7 Ft E b Ug A 5,952
Unallocated ROBITHAS
administrative
expenses (136,504)
Unallocated other gains RHEEAM
or losses Wa=EREE (26,802)
Unallocated finance costs 7 7 Ft 88 & A A& (56,936)
Profit before tax B % A &R F) 119,324

00 000 00000COCEOCOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOSOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o o oo 0000000000000 0000O0
PR FEER T ARA R 2019 ¥

108



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B LFE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA KsEE R (E)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 H Z2018F12A31HILFE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Elimination Consolidated
i R R TAHMME i 88 e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FTAT TAERT FAT FAT FAT
Revenue KA
External sales IR E 3,639,735 286,387 409,985 382,786 - 4,718,893
Inter-segment sales* D e tHE 126,556 20,898 2,624 - (150,078) -
Commission income e A 3,176 179 - - - 3,355
3,769,467 307,464 412,609 382,786 (150,078) 4,722,248
* Inter-segment sales * DEEEER
are charged at cost DN
Segment profit 5 7B 4 # 391,183 19,235 17,868 34,306 - 462,592
Unallocated other income & 7 Bt E b U A 11,240
Unallocated RO BATHRX
administrative
expenses (142,860)
Unallocated other gains K2 fic 1t
or losses I a5 ok 5 48 (8,624)
Unallocated finance costs & % fic &t & X A (4,095)
Profit before tax B 75 A 4 A 318,253
The accounting policies of the reportable and operating A2 N&E D H 2 G5B B T3P
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting HoASEBE G EEAER o 5 Em 5
policies described in note 3. Segment profit represents ENEEEZEN  BESHSHEE
the gross profit generated from each segment including FEMEERN - WMBRHEERDERAZ o 1
gross profit directly attributable to each segment, net of RATBLEEBRKEELETER  UEE
selling and distribution expenses. This is the measure RO M AN B RE ZFFERELE -

reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31H IEFE

5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WA KRG EHER (E)
(Continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES THEERAE
No assets and liabilities are included in the measures of FELEEBEARAKRECHEN ZAEED
the Group’s segment reporting that are regularly reviewed ﬁ&%%’f%ﬂf]jlﬂuﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ\ o AL
by the CODM. Accordingly, no segment assets and THRERSDBEERARE -

liabilities are presented.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION Hitp MEH
Amounts included in the measure of segment result: AAADMEBFEZSR:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12831HILEE
Other
Hong regions in
Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
EH Al HE TAHMHE RAE o)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FER TExT TFTHE=R FERr FBT FBT
(Note b)
(Bf &Eb)
Depreciation of property, — #1% « &%
plant and equipment BB E 112,899 4,987 7,017 5,528 6,248 136,679
Depreciation of right-of-  FRELENE
use assets 250,357 17,890 19,725 9,132 11,633 308,737
Expense relating to HEEMXFH
rented premises 53
(Note a) GED) 28,799 1,379 52,039 13,302 2,022 97,5
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018F12A31HIEFE
Other
Hong regions in Asia
Kong Macau PRC Pacific Unallocated Consolidated
S R RE TAHMME KA A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL TFARL FET FET FET
(Note b)
(KF D)
Operating lease EEHEMNR
payments 323,000 19,748 57,385 19,253 12,090 431,476
Depreciation of property, — #% - #E &
plant and equipment REBITE 16,466 3,202 4,844 3,296 6,043 33,851
Notes: B 5
(a) Expenses relating to rented premises includes expenses () HEEMEEH L HAIBEREHEEN
relating to short-term leases and other leases with lease term LEMBEHREXERT AN EREER
end within 12 months of the date of initial application of HKFRS F1e AT 2EARNERMNEERTH
16, variable lease payments and rental expenses for contracts ZHRAX AEBEMR S KRBRES BB
reassessed not under the definition of lease under HKFRS 16. HREEAFREAENEEMENTHL
AHZHEME -
(b) Unallocated represents amount used for office. (b) KOMIBFERARPIEZRHE -
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HZE2019F12A31A LFE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WARSEHER (Z)
(Continued)
REVENUE BY MAJOR PRODUCTS FEERZBA
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from AEBERBETZEMERBZWA DT
its major products and services: N
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Sales of watch 5 & 5E 8k 3,156,923 3,660,692
Sales of jewellery HEKE 951,865 1,058,201
Commission income — Watch & U A-$E 5K 1,329 3,355
4,110,117 4,722,248
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION i & & R
Information about the Group’s non-current assets, ERREEMEHEBUEERIAER
excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets, FRNDEECRHEENETHEEER
presented based on the geographical location of the INZBHRFBEINDT

assets are detailed below:

As at 31 December 2019 R20195F12 A31H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC Asia Pacific Consolidated
=it B HE BAHMHE Foey
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT FTER FTER FTER TER

Non-current EREBEE
assets 2,251,540 56,364 74,711 34,763 2,417,378

00 000 00000OCOCOCOEOOOEOEOGOEONOOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o oo 0o o000 0000000000000 0O0O0
W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

111



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22 N\ 23
fo o B S R W RE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F12A31B LFE
5.  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WA Ko EE R (&)
(Continued)
GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION (Continued) tEE R (E)
As at 31 December 2018 71201812 H31H
Other
regions in
Hong Kong Macau PRC  Asia Pacific Consolidated
BB B P9 RE oK H MM R ra
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FHET FHET FAET FHET
Non-current EmBEE
assets 1,982,948 31,535 32,590 20,418 2,067,491
No revenue from a single customer amounted to 10 RREFE  MEREFAEEE-—KFPZ
percent or more of the Group’s total revenue for both Wash ANEE W s B2 FE10% A I o
years.
6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hfk A
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Interest income from bank deposits RITF XA B U A 1,335 10,393
Interest income from rental deposits Heke B WA 3,237 -
Others Hib 1,380 847
5,952 11,240
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WERK
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEF B 36,253 4,095
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGRE 20,683 -
56,936 4,095
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8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Ak B T B iR M

8. BrBiAI i A

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FHET
Profit before tax has been arrived at after & & 5% &I 2 1% (GFA)
charging (crediting): THIEE :
Auditor’s remuneration % BT BN &
— Current year - RFEE 3,576 4,289
— Under(over)provision in prior years -BEFERBIR (B
REEME) 262 2)
Cost of inventories included in cost of sales 5 & K AR 2 17 & K X
(included allowance for inventories of (B 1577 & B 1#843,000
HK$843,000 (2018: reversal of allowance T (20184 - #E B 17
for inventories HK$14,472,000)) (note) ERH#514,472,00078 7T))
(B 3E) 2,836,628 3,407,846
(Reversal of) allowance for credit losses EEREB(ERE)&EE (3,837) 4,519
Depreciation of property, plant and EUATIEBEZWE - #Kas
equipment: REIE -
— retail shops - TEEH 130,431 27,808
- offices -WAE 6,248 6,043
136,679 33,851
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CTHREEENE
— retail shops - ZTEEH 297,104 -
- offices o NE 11,633 -
308,737 -
Staff costs, including Directors’ EIXA BEESEHSE
remuneration (note 9(a)) (Bt 5E9(a))
— salaries and other benefits costs - %ﬁé&ﬁﬁﬂ% MEA 289,508 268,662
— retirement benefits scheme R AR F 51 81 3%
contributions 24,419 22,998
313,927 291,660
Included in other gains or losses: ETAE M Rk E 1S
Impairment loss recognised in respect of I E WELREER
property, plant and equipment 2 MEEE 3,406 1,761
Impairment loss recognised in respect of  Fh{F L E# R 2 ME
right-of-use assets &5 18 16,804 -
Loss on disposals/write-off of property, HEEHEE - KSR
plant and equipment BEEE 3,559 2,994
Gain arising from termination of leases AR IEFrE £ 2 W (561) -
Net exchange losses b 5 B 18 % 58 3,594 3,869
26,802 8,624
Note: For the year ended 31 December 2018, reversal of Mizt: B E2018F12A31HILFE - RIEBEHE

allowance for inventories recognised in profit or loss was
attributable to the continued upswing of the watches and

jewellery business.

R TF

ERERRDHREERKE
EBFHELIE -
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9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 9.
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS

(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

B EEABARRMESME

(A) EEREZETHAER
B £20194F 201812 A31H [ F
BEZENRENEEREBTHA
BrzMEFBmT:

Details of the emoluments paid and payable to the
Directors and Chief Executive for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2019 B Z2019F12A31B L EE
Performance Retirement
related benefits
Salaries and incentive scheme
Fees allowance payment contributions Total
BIRER
e FEREH RARBEX = 8l R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
THER TERT TERT TERT TERT
Executive Director and HITEER
Chief Executive FETHAR
Ms. Cindy Yeung HEELt 250 3,285 1,200 60 4,795
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai BEBEE 250 = = = 250
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SE& &+ 250 = = - 250
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene BREER L+ 220 = = = 220
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BEERE 220 = = = 220
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RER I+ 220 = = - 220
1,410 3,285 1,200 60 5,955
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B LFE
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. HH - FHETBABKEEMSE
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(A) DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE (Continued) A) EERFETHRARE)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ2018F12A31HIEFE
Performance Retirement
related benefits
Salaries and incentive scheme
Fees allowance payment contributions Total
E KRR
e FeREN RREHRE BERGES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAT FAT FTAET
Executive Director and BTESRTE
Chief Executive TBRAE
Ms. Cindy Yeung BEELL 225 3,383 1,000 46 4,654
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Chan Hung Ming PR B B 5 &
(resigned on 1 March (FA20184F
2018) 3A1BE 1) 25 250 1,000 - 1,275
Mr. Wong Chi Fai "mEBEE 225 - - - 225
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa SE& &+ 225 - - - 225
Independent Non-executive BIFHTES
Directors
Ms. Chan Sim Ling, Irene PR 83 2+ 215 - - - 215
Mr. Liu Hing Hung BREETE 215 - - - 215
Ms. Chan Wiling, Yvonne RERZT 215 - - - 215
1,345 3,633 2,000 46 7,024
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B LFE

9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S AND 9. FHF - FHEITBABLKEEME
EMPLOYEES” EMOLUMENTS (Continueq) (%)
(B) EMPLOYEES (B) EE

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments rEBzhfumaFMEES  —

in the Group, one (2018: one) was Director and Chief 7 (2018F : — ) REE R EET

Executive whose emoluments are included in note BMAB - BEZHFME N Lt

9(a) above. The emoluments of the remaining four BiEE9(a) o 2 T PUfZ (20184F « PUfL)

(2018: four) individuals were as follows: ZHBAT

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Salaries and allowance e koER 5,253 4,905

Performance related incentive TR

payment 800 1,718
Retirement benefits scheme R AR 5 81 R

contributions 193 104

6,246 6,727

Their emoluments were within the following bands: REZHFHMER LT -

Number of employees
EBEAH
2019 2018
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/% Jt £1,500,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7t £2,000,0007% 7T 2 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001% JT £2,500,000/% JT - 1

Notes: P B -

()  The fees paid or payable to the Chief Executive, (i) f:ﬁaﬁiﬁgﬁi%ﬁﬁ/\ﬁ -
Executive Directors and Independent Non-executive TT,ﬁ%?@i#ﬁ*?§$U§fﬂ
Directors shown above were for their services in HESHEERDBERMIE L
connection with their services as directors of the B -

Company.

(i) The salaries and allowance, performance related (i) L;ﬁgﬁg%@ﬁ%ﬂﬁ%?&}%ﬁ
incentive payment and retirement benefits scheme Eﬁ(/\%!Z%ﬁEﬁ)S%}tﬂﬁﬁ‘t%fiﬁ/ﬁb%j
contributions paid or payable to the Executive Directors Eiii ﬁﬁif F &1 Bl ﬁjﬁiﬁ 04 55
and Chief Executive shown above were for their sERAREEEMIR L REH
services in connection with the management of the B

affairs of the Group.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B IEFE
9. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 9. #HE - - FESBABKAEEMSE
EMPLOYEES" EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (%)
(B) EMPLOYEES (Continued) (B) EE(#&)
Notes: (Continued) B sE ()
(i)  The performance related incentive payment is a (i) REBBAZDIEAEEZBBEE
discretionary bonus determined based on the financial METZWEIEL -
performance of the Group.
(iv)  No Directors or Chief Executive waived or agreed (iv) B Z22019F12H318 k20184124
to waive any emoluments in the years ended 31 JIALFE BEEERFZTHR
December 2019 and 31 December 2018. AEMEXREREEMME -
(v)  During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 (v) H Z=2019F12A318 k20184127
December 2018, no emoluments were paid by the 1A IFE - A& BB & [ AE [ A
Group to any of the directors of the Group or the five SEEES AU ESHMEES N
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or ERME - tERMAREE KR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of AREEEOEE - SERBRBE
office. B (8 o
10. TAXATION 10. BiJE
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
The tax charge for the year comprises: FARBBIHBRE:
Current year: REE
Hong Kong BB 24,596 41,840
Macau & P 1,415 3,004
Singapore b0 3 8,969 5,722
34,980 50,566
Under(over)provision in prior years: BEFEREETR
(EBFEBHE)
Hong Kong 0 61 -
Macau BP9 - (172)
Singapore b0 21 -
82 (172)
Deferred taxation (note 23) i 3E B 18 (P 5E23) (5,769) 3,575
29,293 53,969
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

10.

TAXATION (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million
of profits of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at
8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
as insignificant to the consolidated financial statements.
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the
estimated assessable profit for both years.

The Macau Complementary Income Tax is calculated at
12% of the estimated assessable profits for both years.

Singapore Income Tax is calculated at 17% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC is
25% for both years.

Malaysia Income Tax is calculated at 24% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years. No provision
for Malaysia Income Tax has been made as the
Company’s subsidiary did not have any assessable profit
arising from Malaysia for both years.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 23.

10.

BiIH (4)

R2018F3A21H BB L A€ B
CCOTEBIE BRI EB7H) GBI E =X
BIEZR]) S| AR S B MRS o 5% &5
ZER2018F3A28BEEEX AAAE TR
DRHAEER - BEFNSHMAESH - &
BIREEET R E 2,000,000 7T A 5
1#8.25% Tt E & - M &R 182,000,000/
T2 M 1% 16 5% R - TFEF
SEHMAHER 2 EBEE 2 & F 5%
BE1216.5% 2 B — T R EF o

10F % 3

EERR NENMAGEREA TR
ZEREGRAMBHRRLEE KEIE -
At - MEFE 2B BNEH ARG
&R ) ) 216.5% & o

P B 15 18 75 L 7Y AR 8 UL 4E 2 A
FE AR50 1 Bt 129 71 o

O P SRR IR W E F R 2 S AT E R
Mg AR IR E17% T H

RIEFBECEMESRE((CEMESFED
ROCEMSFREZEMRBET  AARER
BB ARRAMEFE 2HEA25% °

SR PTISHAR B B F 2 2 f 5 &
R M IR I E24% 5T H - MM EFE
N ARARRMEB AR L ENERA
TEAEAERBEN Bt EHRS
KEDFAEBELEE -

EET IR 2 S IFE S 23 o

00 000 00000COCEOCOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOSOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o o oo 0000000000000 0000O0
PR FEER T ARA R 2019 ¥

118



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

Ak B T B iR M

B E2019F12A31H IEF &

10. TAXATION (Continued) 10. BiIE(#&)
Taxation for the year can be reconciled to the profit before AREEHBEGEERREMEZEKA
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and WMEMRZBRBARFERAT

other comprehensive income as follows:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Profit before tax B Bt A % 119,324 318,253
Tax charge at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate ?;116 5% 2 BB FEHBK
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) KU 2 BiIE (20184 -
16.5%) 19,688 52,512
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for TR IR X 2 FHIEF &
tax purpose 17,827 7,493
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax WARMMAZH G E
purpose (1,563) (8,506)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries MB AR R E MR EERE
operating in other jurisdictions KEZTRPMEZ 2 (638) (1,230)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised W ARMERTIAEE 2B
5 2 1,386 4,567
Utilisation of tax losses previously not BREAABRZHIES
recognised # (6,303) (512)
Under(over)provision in respect of prior BAFE2RETR (HBHE
years B1E) 82 (172)
Others H b (1,186) (183)
Taxation for the year FEMIE 29,293 53,969
The Hong Kong Profits Tax rate is used as this is the FIRBZBEENGHRERDAEERBE
domestic tax rate in the jurisdiction where the operation ERMEREER ZEMTE - REAM A
of the Group is substantially based. Taxation arising in FREREEZHRENDRBBREERZ
other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in HRAMEGE -

the relevant jurisdiction.

00 000 00000OCOCOCOEOOOEOEOGOEONOOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o oo 0o o000 0000000000000 0O0O0
W RFEERTAMRA R 2019 4

119



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZE2019F12A31B LFE
11. DIVIDENDS 11. BB
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Dividends recognised as distribution BRAERNFEDIKZ
during the year: fx 2
2018 Final: HK0.55 cent 20185 KR H : ®AR0.55/&1
(2017: 0.58 cent) per share (20174 : 0.5878 1) 37,287 39,864
2019 Interim: HK0.35 cent 2019F R HY : & J%0.358 1
(2018: interim dividend HK0.70 cent) (20184 - HHAMR B
per share 0.707 1) 23,728 47,456
61,015 87,320
The Board did not recommend any payment of final BV TERRMTEZE2019F12H31H
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: IEF E A fa] R BRI AR 2. (20184F - B 180.55

HKO0.55 cent per share).

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AL ©

12. HkBF —HAR

The calculation of the basic earnings per share AKAREBAREERERBR TIRE
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the THEBEFE:

following data:

EARNINGS ZF|
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
F&T FAT
Profit for the year attributable to the owners BLETEZFREARBF ~
of the Company for the purpose of basic RNARIER AEAS
earnings per share F = i A 90,031 264,284
NUMBER OF SHARES BoEE
2019 2018
Weighted average number of ordinary A EEREARRN 2 E
shares for the purpose of basic earnings AR e o & e
per share 6,779,458,129 6,825,404,677
No diluted earnings per share in both years was RAMEFETSEET#EL B - Al
presented as there were no potential dilutive ordinary PRETEANTEZIGREERF o

shares in issue during both years.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31B LFE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W3 - B8 P i
Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold fixtures and Motor
building improvements equipment vehicles Total
HELH HEWE B #8
kEgF HEIR Ed RE 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHAT FAT FAT FHAT FHET
COST AR
At 1 January 2018 »2018F1A18 - 297,085 85,436 916 383,437
Exchange realignment AR - (1,229) (508) (10) (1,747)
Additions NE - 58,303 30,237 440 88,980
Acquired upon acquisition of I BB M B R RIFTEEA
subsidiaries (note 27) (HsE27) 1,800,000 - - - 1,800,000
Disposals/write-off HE /i - (15,700) (7,667) (8) (23,375)
At 31 December 2018 720185 12A31H 1,800,000 338,459 107,498 1,338 2,247,295
Exchange realignment I 53 B - (516) (611) (5) (1,132)
Additions NE - 50,466 20,946 - 71,412
Disposals/write-off HE/F i - (17,330) (6,261) - (23,591)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 1,800,000 371,079 121,572 1,333 2,293,984
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Rt ERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1A1H - 253,145 57,021 224 310,390
Exchange realignment P& 5 - (1,073) (265) (7) (1,345)
Provided for the year FREE 4,793 17,258 11,549 251 33,851
Impairment loss recognised REZERZHE
in profit or loss (=g - 1,761 - - 1,761
Eliminated on disposals/write-off e H 8 o - (13,858) (6,515) (8) (20,381)
At 31 December 2018 2018412 A31H 4,793 257,233 61,790 460 324,276
Exchange realignment AT - (345) (381) (5) (731)
Provided for the year FREE 92,081 30,364 14,001 233 136,679
Impairment loss recognised RESERZHE
in profit or loss BB - 3,406 - - 3,406
Eliminated on disposals/write-off &/ - (15,390) (4,314) - (19,704)
At 31 December 2019 72019512 A31H 96,874 275,268 71,096 688 443,926
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 1,703,126 95,811 50,476 645 1,850,058
At 31 December 2018 2018124318 1,795,207 81,226 45,708 878 1,923,019
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The items of property, plant and equipment above are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

Leasehold land and building Over the unexpired

lease terms
16.7% — 33.3%
9% - 33.3%
18% — 20%

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Motor vehicles
Leasehold land and building is located in Hong Kong.

As certain shops in Hong Kong and Macau did not
perform as expected, the management of the Group
concluded there was an indication for impairment and
conducted impairment assessment on recoverable
amounts of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets of relevant shops. The Group estimates the
recoverable amount of these shops, each represents an
individual CGU, to which the asset belongs when it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually.

The recoverable amount of CGUs has been determined
based on a value in use calculation.

Based on the result of the assessment, no impairment
loss was recognised on the shops which recoverable
amount is not less than the CGU’s carrying amount.
Furthermore, since the Group estimates certain shops
with impairment indicators would not generate a net cash
inflow in the future, an impairment loss of HK$3,406,000
and HK$16,804,000 (2018: HK$1,761,000 and HK$NIl)
has been recognised against the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
during the year ended 31 December 2019, respectively.
The remaining lease term of these shops are to end
around one year from the end of the reporting period.

13. W3 - W48 Ko i (48)

Pt HERREBEBAEREE
BTN ERFTE:

HELHREF RARE®EEHA
HEWMENREZTRE 167%%233.3%
RFL - HENERE 9%E33.3%
RE 18% & 20%

MELHREFLREE -

MR EENRFIE TE#HNORERE RNE
o AEEEEEFELER  BUPRE
REBESHIME  BRERREZATR
CeBUAREREEERIRAERDE
TTRER G - WEZEFGHEFFTRES
BAAEEGFZEEHEEMBZ
ReELEU 2RO -

RetESN RO RDIREEHA
BEAEEETE -

BEFHER ATKBESBEBRNVPRES
EEBMZEEEMNEHT RERRE
B8 o AN ARAKEIRBEIEEZERN
AETRAREBZIELERERAFELZ
JE4E - HE2019F 12 A31AILEEME -
WEREEARFEREEED B ERR
{8 /85 183,406,000/% 7T }%16,804,000/% 7T
(20184 : 1,761,000 L R EHE L) » RKIE
WEARZEEHNFSRBARR —FLE
fE R o
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HZE2019F12A31HILFE
14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. i HREE &
Leased
properties
HEWE
HK$’'000
FHEIT
cosT B &
At 31 December 2018 R2018% 12 A31H -
Impact on initial application of HKFRS 16 (note 2) HEXNEREBMIEREE
BIZE165% M R 2 (B 55 2) 461,081
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1H1H 461,081
Exchange realignment b 3 & (1,440)
Additions NE 434,926
Termination of leases WIEME (6,039)
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A31H 888,528
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION AND R ERAE
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2019 120191 /1H -
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 B (609)
Provided for the year FAREE 308,737
Impairment loss recognised (note 13) B3R 2 R A &5 18 (M 5E13) 16,804
Eliminated on termination of leases 4 FFE E R e (2,183)
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A31H 322,749
CARRYING VALUE BREE
At 31 December 2019 R2019412 A31H 565,779
Short-term leases and other leases with lease term end EHHErRHEMHAPEEAERSE S
within 12 months of the date of initial application of sk EERFE165 B H 128 AR
HKFRS 16 and variable lease payments during the year [Eme & A RF AR EHEERIED 5
were HK$46,413,000 and HK$28,330,000, respectively. /46,413,000 7T 28,330,000/ JT
In addition, rental expenses for contracts reassessed o MERBEE SV REERSF
not under the definition of lease under HKFRS 16 was BHREENTEENHi2ANE2
HK$22,798,000. Total cash outflow for leases during M X /22,798,000 T o &, £20194F12
the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to A3BEFEHEZH SR BB =
HK$381,957,000. 381,957,000/ JT °
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HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

14.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

For both years, the Group leases retail shops and office
for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into for
fixed term of 1 to 5 years, but may have extension and
termination options as described below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide
range of different terms and conditions. In determining
the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

Addition to right-of-use assets includes right-of-use assets
resulting from lease modification to extend the lease term.

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
retail shops in the PRC. As at 31 December 2019, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to short-term lease
expenses disclosed above.

Leases of retail stores are either with only fixed lease
payments or contain variable lease payment that are
based on certain percentage sales and minimum annual
lease payment that are fixed over the lease term. The
payment terms are common in retail stores in the PRC
where the Group operates. The overall financial effect of
using variable payment terms is that higher rental costs
are incurred by stores with higher sales.

The Group has extension options for certain leases in
Hong Kong. These are used to maximise operational
flexibility in terms of managing the assets used in the
Group’s operations. The extension options held are
exercisable only by the Group.

The Group assesses at lease commencement date
whether it is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
options. As at 31 December 2019, the potential
exposures to these future lease payments not included in
lease liabilities for extension options in which the Group
is not reasonably certain to exercise is HK$15,786,000.

14.

1 Fi B 5 7 (48)

RMEFE  AEBE AT EEH R
NRENESLE -BHESNFTLETEHR
R/—EDF - BREAR NIt 2 &R
REIEEZEE - HERADREEBE
1A 1T 19 B S B B K8 B A R 16k R M A6k
fF o R A B Ko Ak B AT EE HA R
RER AKEEBANNEENREE
BRI R B LR B e

EAEREEE(BREREHZEEE
W2 EREEE) -

AEBEEHNPERT LT EEH 258 H
THE - N2019F12A31H - R HIH E A
BHE A EEHESEM BB -

TEEH - HEEZARATHENRKE
SAEHENF(EERBEREE &
TEALLHERMZEFERENK)
NRERRAEEETPREENTERS
BREE ERAIZXMERNEEY
SHERRHEEHEELEZMNHEENR
o

AEBRBEAFAE THEZLERER
B-ZEFEERANAEEAKRELS
RZEERKEBAERAL - R
SERTEZERERE -

AEERHERBARTEESRRE
EBRETFELERERERE - K2019F124
31 AEERKEAEBEEITFELERE
BERAEABETRPNAZSERREE
2B R 15,786,000 T °
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HE2019F12A31B It EFE
15. INVENTORIES 15. #8&
2019 2018
HK$°’000 HK$’000
T#& T FH& T
Raw materials R Mk 44,892 29,061
Goods held for resale FEE &M 3,103,458 3,067,443
3,148,350 3,096,504
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. MEM KA ~ % & K VE AT 3 E
PREPAYMENTS
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH& T FHE T
Trade receivables from contracts with REEFEHZ
customers B 5 e W IA 50,716 65,855
Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERG (682) (4,519)
50,034 61,336
Other receivables, deposits and E b i I 5K TE
prepayments ?Eé&iﬁﬁ IE 81,639 84,378
PRC VAT recoverable FR B AT g [B] 2 (E FR 1A 12,394 17,347
Singapore Goods and Service Tax #7003 7 dm
recoverable K AR 7 ] Ug 3] £ 18 - 2,503
144,067 165,564

Retail sales are normally settled in cash or by credit cards TEHE—RURS K ABERTHEM
with the settlement from the corresponding banks or other %%M%T%SEHZF?J ‘FﬁAtEI Wf:'fﬁ i
financial institutions within seven days. The credit term BEARTEHE 2B % =
of receivables from retail sales in department stores are ZGT&@FHSI%EI o

normally ranged between 15 to 45 days.

R2019F 1278318 » A # & 7B 8 &

Included in other receivables, deposits and prepayments

as at 31 December 2019 were advance payments to
suppliers of HK$19,208,000 (2018: HK$20,935,000)
and rebate receivables of HK$33,654,000 (2018:
HK$32,516,000). The remaining items are individually
insignificant.

19,208,000/% 7T (20184 : 20,935,000/
7T) K FEU [E14133,654,00078 7T (2018 4F -
32,516,000/% JT) 2 5T A H b f& YL 5K I8
e RIEMKE - Eﬁ%mﬁaiﬁﬁﬁlﬁ
TEREEHE -
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HZE2019F12A31B LFE
16. RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 16. MEWCEKIH ~ & & R A RIEE)
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)
As at 1 January 2018, trade receivables from contracts MR2018F1R1H  REEFAHNZESIE
with customers amounted to HK$77,490,000. W FX I8 A77,490,000/8 7T ©
The following is an ageing analysis of trade receivables AT 7% 0R B A1 E 2 e WK IE 7R B 3R 2R R
before impairment presented based on the invoice date REZFHM(EEARKAERBEMEI)
at the end of the reporting period, which approximated Z5 2 REBE DT -
the respective revenue recognition dates.
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Within 30 days 30HA 47,165 52,249
31 — 60 days 31£60H 828 1,362
61 — 90 days 61£290H 313 2,536
Over 90 days B @90 H 2,410 9,708
50,716 65,855
Included in the trade receivables balance were B9RWAFBEHPBEERRLAEAR
receivables from department stores with aggregate 2,434,000 7T (20184F : 4,835,000/ JT)
carrying amount of HK$2,434,000 (2018: HK$4,835,000) ZHRLEERAEARNRIE  RERBE -
which are past due at the reporting date for which the ZERECBH - MAE B &ELDR
Group has not provided for impairment loss. BEBEEE-
Details of impairment assessment of trade and other B 5 & HAth B WK IB 2 R E T 2 FF 18
receivables are set out in note 29. & 5 B 5E29 o
17. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 17. SATH R R B &
As at 31 December 2019, bank balances carried interest 2019512 A31H » RITHAEIZ T F0.01%
at market rates which ranged from 0.01% to 1.65% per %1.65% (20184 : T F0.01% £1.10%) Ky 1
annum (2018: 0.01% to 1.10% per annum). BHERETR -
Bank balances and cash that are not denominated in the WHENEEEBERB ZNEEEIEBE R
functional currencies of the respective group entities are THEARRSEOT:
as follow:
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
HK$ B TT 1,379 1,108
Macau Pataca (“MOP”) BT (MR 23,359 37,831
United States dollars (“USD”) EZrx(ExT)) 732 2,085
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HZE2019F12A31B LFE
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18, ME A K IE K HEFH &
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Trade payables 2 5N RIE 44,357 190,625
Other payables and accrued charges Hih B RIBEREGE R 72,631 101,714
PRC VAT payables A pE < IS (B A 198 381
117,186 292,720
Included in other payables and accrued charges B A A B A FE S 3RR N B 5T & A 122019
as at 31 December 2019 were accrued bonus and F12A318 B RETIE 4 & 8 £4,894,000
incentive of HK$4,894,000 (2018: HK$15,863,000) and 7 T (2018%F : 15,863,000 7T) K [
accrued renovation costs of HK$13,369,000 (2018: 5 2 & AL 713,369,000/ T (20184 :
HK$15,147,000). 15,147,000/%& JT) °
The ageing analysis of trade payables presented based BORNFRERERPRZEZAHE
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period are Pz BRER DT -
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Within 30 days 30HR 37,339 158,937
31 — 60 days 312 60H 4,429 26,048
61 — 90 days 61£90H 326 4,208
Over 90 days 8 @90 H 2,263 1,432
44,357 190,625
The Group normally receives credit terms granted by AEBE-—REBRRARTZEERRI0
creditors of 30 to 60 days. £60H -
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B E2019F12A31HILFE
18. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES 18. MEAT sk IEH K HEFHE I (&)
(Continued)
Trade payables that are not denominated in the functional WHENEEE BB ZEERKTECE
currencies of the respective group entities are as follows: SEMNFRIBHT
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
MOP SR P TT 4,804 5,436
usD ETT 39 23,225
19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. R fE
2019
HK$’000
FEx
Lease liabilities payable: ERNHEESE:
Within one year —F R 286,327
Within a period of more than one year but — & FETHEIB™MF
not more than two years 192,382
Within a period of more than two years but MW LA F{E BB RF
not more than five years 140,588
619,297
Less: Amount due for settlement with 12 & : Z| AR B BE I
months shown under current liabilities R12EAREES Zﬁ%ﬁ (286,327)
Amount due for settlement after 12 months %I A 3% 8) & & I 78
shown under non-current liabilities RI2ERBREEZE 2R 332,970
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HZE2019F12A31B IEFE
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20. ARIAME
2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B o FTERT FAET
Advances from customers E P # (a) 7,157 8,593
Customer loyalty B R R T & (b)
programmes 4,800 1,700
11,957 10,293
Contract liabilities are expected to be settled within the AHBEERHERAEE —REEHEEBA
Group’s normal operating cycle and classified as current HERSERMEEE - RN2018F1 A1
liabilities. As at 1 January 2018, contract liabilities arising H BFEXLBEELAHGTEEELEZSE
from advances from customers and customer loyalty B EAR15777.0008 T REHE T °
programmes amounted to HK$15,777,000 and HKS$Nil.
Notes: B 3

(a) Advances from customers of HK$7,157,000 (2018:
HK$8,593,000) were received for the sales of watches and
jewellery. Revenue recognised in the reporting period that
was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning
of the period was HK$5,990,000 (2018: HK$14,573,000).

(b)  Sales of goods that result in award credits for customers,
under the Group’s customer loyalty programmes, are
accounted for as multiple element revenue transactions.
The fair value of the consideration received or receivable is
allocated between the goods supplied and the award credits
granted. The consideration allocated to the award credits is
measured by reference to the fair value of the awards for
which they could be redeemed. As at 31 December 2019,
the consideration of HK$4,800,000 (2018: HK$1,700,000)
was allocated to the award credits. Revenue recognised in
the reporting period that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the period was HK$1,700,000
(2018: HKS$Nil).

The customer loyalty points granted during the year will
expire at the end of June in the following year.
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BHEEEREMKBENURZEFANRK
18 /57,157,000 7T (20184F : 8,593,000
JT) ° ﬁADcEE;ﬁEﬁE* W REBIFAEDE
1& 45 82 Y U 25 /55,990,000 7T (20184 -
14,573,000 7T) °

EEMETFREASE 2 EREHE
EERE EREENAERAZTENR
ARG EFEKRKBERREZAREE
RETEEEREMG FTREZHMETD
fic - Dl E ﬁﬁZﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁg—f%R
M BE 2 AREEE - H2019F12A
318 N ERE 2R E AE4,800000%8
7T (20184 : 1,700,000 7T) © EAD%&HHE
TR IEAHH%)JW\A%@EE%Q%E@M& 5B
1,700,000 Jt (20184 : T JT) ©
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
21. RIGHT TO RETURNED GOODS ASSET AND 21. BREREEKEXAM
REFUND LIABILITIES
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
Right to returned goods asset REREE 3,167 2,462
Refund liabilities arising from right of FEEEMELAZRFAE
return 4,219 3,415
The refund liabilities relate to customers’ right to return HEEREFPREEAH - NEER -
products. At the point of sale, a refund liability and a right Eﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂqLﬁZ%uu TR IR /TA/E & &R
to returned goods asset and a corresponding adjustments BEREENRERK G RIFEKARFHE -
to revenue and cost of sales are recognised for those AEEZERAEHEEBEEARTELL
products expected to be returned. The Group uses its TR EHA -
accumulated historical experience to estimate the number
of returns using the expected value method.
22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) RELATED 22, HEWC(fF) BR 2 W) sk
COMPANIES
The amounts due from related companies mainly EWEEARRBEFTEAKER I 2HE
represent prepayment of operating expenses. RFRIE ©
The amounts due to related companies mainly represent ENBERARBIERENBELNA
the rental, electricity and air-conditioning expenses e TEBRERABIH  UREN

payable and service charge payable to related

companies.

These amounts are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. The related companies represent companies
controlled by a director or private trusts of which another
director is one of the eligible beneficiaries.

R¥5 2 -

AEFAR/EER  RERIZBERERE -
aﬁ@@?%%%&ﬁj\ﬁﬁ (Z—UES
REEBRIBEAZ)ES 2R
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H E2019F12A31HILFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION 23, EHE Al E
The following are the deferred tax assets (liabilities) AEERERCEERBEEBERE
recognised by the Group and the movements thereon REAFERBEIFE2EHMT:

during the current and prior years:

Accelerated tax

Leases depreciation Total
HE MNEBIETE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FHET
At 1 January 2018 R2018F1H1H - 7,612 7,612
Exchange realignment bE 5 & - 17 17
Charge to profit or loss
for the year RERNE MR - (8,575) (3,575)
At 31 December 2018 R2018%12 A31H - 4,054 4,054
Exchange realignment PE 3 - (6) (6)
Credit (charge) to profit
or loss for the year RERBREFTAFR) 7,592 (1,823) 5,769
At 31 December 2019 M20195F12831H 7,592 2,225 9,817
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MENRNEEMBRRBERME - BT
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax BELEHEEERBEETHIE - LT AR
assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is MERmmE N REEHRIBARDN DN :
the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purpose:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Deferred tax assets RIEFHIEEE 13,086 5,161
Deferred tax liabilities BEEMIEAR (3,269) (1,107)
9,817 4,054
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HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

23. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 23. BERBLIH(E)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused
tax losses of approximately HK$137,025,000 (2018:
HK$185,081,000) available for offset against future profits.
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
Included in unrecognised tax losses are losses incurred
by subsidiaries in other jurisdictions of HK$136,861,000
(2018: HK$172,975,000) that will expire in the coming
years (please see the table below). Other losses may be
carried forward indefinitely. Tax losses of HK$15,314,000
(2018: HK$52,937,000) have been expired during the
year.

The unused tax losses available for offset against future

profits are analysed as follows:

RERBEEER  NEEHES A HIKHE
IR s F 2 A B A 5% 18 5 $8 49 137,025,000
7 7T (20184F : 185,081,000/ 7T) » B K
R g B 2ROR B AR T - SR BL B TE B 18
BRELEREEE -NEMAEEERLK
EZHBRARIFMEEMAERHTIEEIE
BIEF T R R EF JE W 2 136,861,000/ 7T
(2018%F : 172,975,000 7T) 2 B (R T~
) EMEsENERBLESE - FREE
2 B TE E 183 15,314,000/ 7T (2018 4F ¢
52,937,000/ 7T) °

AAERERAOEN 2 RS AHBAEE
D

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FHET

Will expire on: % P 71 B B JE O -
31 December 2019 201912 A31H - 35,613
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 42,998 50,269
31 December 2021 202112 A31H 48,208 49,040
31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 13,294 13,664
31 December 2023 2023F12 A31H 19,215 19,641
31 December 2024 202412 A31H 3,027 -
31 December 2025 2025912 A31H 4,748 4,748
31 December 2026 2026F12 H31H 5,371 -
136,861 172,975

Unrecognised tax loses that may be AERHAE

carried forward indefinitely im) R HE R B IR ES 1R 164 12,106
137,025 185,081
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B E2019F12A31H IEF &
24. BANK BORROWINGS 24, $iTfE &
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Carrying amounts repayable: ERNATHREER
2 BRHEE:
Within one year —F R 172,900 561,822
Within a period of more than one year  —F A F{ERB B F
but not exceeding two years 42,396 77,689
Within a period of more than two years FFIA F{ERBBEAF
but not exceeding five years 438,088 103,788
Within a period of more than five years  HFIA 137,550 413,196
790,934 1,156,495
Less: Amounts due within one year /JX W)\mi@jﬁﬁ I 7B
shown under current liabilities R—FERNEEZT (172,900) (561,822)
Amounts shown under non-current FIANEMBBEZ 2
liabilities 618,034 594,673
The bank borrowings carry floating interest rate ranged WITEEREARITAXZRS(EER
from 1.11% to 1.14% over Hong Kong Interbank Offered TRIZERE D I 11%E114% 2 % B F 7
Rate (“HIBOR”) (2018: 0.9% to 2.25%) and 1.2% over R+ B (20184 : 0.9% £2.25%) K ¥ 7 1N
Singapore Interbank Offered Rate (“SIBOR”) per annum WIRITRZEFRE (FIRRITRERE ]
(2018: Nil). hN1.2% (20184F : #)ETE o
The Group had pledged a property of HK$1,703,126,000 AEBEEH—THEEE,703,126,00078 T
(2018: HK$1,795,207,000) to secure banking facilities (20184F : 1,795,207,00078 7T) 2 ¥ % L‘x
granted to the Group. In addition, corporate guarantee ERASEBERBRITHE 2EHA N
was also issued in favour of the banks by the Company N RRB NN R B R IRTT Vﬂéfﬁﬁ
to secure banking facilities granted to Group. MERITIRE B EER -
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HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL

26.

Number of ordinary shares

25. A

Share capital

EBEREAE ' &
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
TAER FAT

Issued and fully paid BEETRER
At beginning of year REH] 6,779,458,129 6,882,448,129 3,484,152 3,484,152
Shares repurchased [l f8 &

and cancelled FER D - (102,990,000) - -
At end of year RER 6,779,458,129 6,779,458,129 3,484,152 3,484,152

The total consideration for the shares repurchased and
cancelled during the previous year was HK$51,194,000,
which was debited to retained profits.

RESERVES

(a)

Merger reserve arose from the group reorganisation
scheme (the “Group Reorganisation”) undertaken
by the Company to rationalise the structure of the
Group in preparation for the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Stock Exchange in 2008.

Other reserve represented the aggregate amount of:

(i)

(iii)

the difference between the nominal value of
share capital and the amount due to Emperor
W&J Holdings capitalised for issue of 344
ordinary shares of US$1 each in a subsidiary
of HK$343,997,000 prior to the Group
Reorganisation;

the capital contribution of HK$6,000 by
Emperor W&J Holdings in Emperor Watch
and Jewellery Company Limited (subsequently
renamed as Prime Sharp Limited, a then fellow
subsidiary of the Company) (“EWJCL”) prior to
the Group Reorganisation;

promissory notes in aggregate of
HK$373,006,000 issued in exchange for
shares in the subsidiaries as a part of Group
Reorganisation;

RBEFEEMLOELTHEKR O 2 ERE
51,194,000 7T - EE R R 8B )& F /B 30
B{% o

il 5

(@) AHFEEREARAREBHARRK
0 7R 20084F F£ Bt 2 Ffr £ 7 1M 45 f A
SEABZEEEAAB(EEE
MOPTESE -

26.

Hitf# e TR Z A%

() REEBEZHARF BAEMEHERE
NEEERKEZERFIIBER
b (317344 M B A R B A
BE1E T 2L RmBRRGD) 2HH
# %8343,997,0007% 7T ;

(i) REEERKEEREEER
BEHMHREERKERR
A a(E 1% 18 & Prime  Sharp
Limited - BB AN 2 A&
ZEBRARHIEWICL) 2 B E
6,0008 7T ;

EBEEEH G -
BB AR Z B imEETT 2 #&
Z 4 #£373,006,0007 7T

(iif)
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HZE2019F12A31B L FE

26. RESERVES (Continued)

(iv) the excess of the consideration paid for
acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary
from a non-controlling shareholder over the
carrying amount of non-controlling interest
of HK$927,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

(v) the shortfall of the consideration paid
for acquisition of additional interest in a
subsidiary from a non-controlling interest of
HK$4,063,000 during the year ended 31
December 2010;

(vi) the reversal of reserve of HK$295,000 arising
from the deregistration of a non-wholly
owned subsidiary during the year ended 31
December 2011; and

(vii) the reversal of HK$28,000 and HK$5,000
arising from the deregistration of a wholly
owned subsidiary during the year ended
31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014
respectively.

(c) Capital reserve represented the excess of the value
of net assets acquired over purchase consideration
paid to EWJCL by Emperor Watch & Jewellery (HK)
Company Limited in 1987.

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 12 December 2018, the Group acquired entire equity
interest in Perfect Raise Holdings Limited (“Perfect Raise”)
and its subsidiaries (together, “Perfect Raise Group”) and
the amount due to a fellow subsidiary of Perfect Raise at
cash consideration of HK$1,151,472,000. This acquisition
has been accounted for as an acquisition of assets and
liabilities. Perfect Raise is an investment holding company.
Perfect Raise Group is principally engaged in property
investment in Hong Kong.
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26. fififhi(#)

(iv) [ —BIEERAE R E— R
B AREIINERE 2 ENRE
8B IE T IR &= R ELE 2010
FI2A3BIEFE 2 E®EE
927,000 7T ;

(v) REZE2010F128318ILFE
[m) — 44 IF 12 AR 2 W B — A B
BRafEIIMERE ZEMNRET
&4 584,063,000 7T ;

(vi) EHZE2011F12A31BILFE -
A —EEEEH B AR
iy # 1B 2 f# 295,000 T
IS8

(vii) EZ2015%F12 8318 K 20144
12A318LEFE - 5B —
MEEWBAR MY B #E
28,0008 7t &5,000/8 T °

(c) BARBEBELAESEEU®KEEFES A
RARIR1987F W EBEWICLZ B E
FEHBOBEREZHBG -

27, Wi i g 4 W

R2018F12A12H  AEBUIR & KRB
1,151,472,0007%8 L BB T E 151 IR B IR A A
(FEHB D EREMB AR (GBIEHGEE])
ZEMBRERENEGZREANEB QT
ZHREBEMUBEARAEERBRER
BoHipABEEERAR - HIGE
EXTZRNEBNREYWEREER -
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HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

27. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

28.

Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of
acquisition (which was 12 December 2018) were set as
follows:

27.

W i A Jag§ > W (48 )

PRUEE R (B12018F 12 A12H) R Z B
BEERBEBEHOT:

HK$’000
TER
Property, plant and equipment ME - HRELERE 1,800,000
Receivables and deposits W RIE RiR® 2,106
Taxation receivable A Y @] 7 18 1,253
Bank balances and cash IRITHEGBRIRE 3,001
Payables, deposits received and accrued [ETHIE - BEWEI& R EFTER
charges (17,882)
Bank borrowings RITEE (637,006)
Total identifiable net assets AR B EFEER 1,151,472
Purchase consideration settled in cash NWIReHEEZBERE 1,151,472
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances & :FTEBEAZIR & RN EBEYEH
acquired (3,001)
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of W EIZEBMME S 2 FH R
Perfect Raise Group 1,148,471

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure the entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balances. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and
cash equivalents, debt comprising bank borrowings, lease
liabilities and equity attributable to the owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure periodically.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of
capital and risks associated with the capital, and will
balance its overall capital structure through new share
issues and share buy-backs as well as raising of new
bank borrowings.

28.

A R g B

AEBEREANUABAREEANSERY
ARELE  RFEBECEBLRA
RSB RRREADR - AEEHZE
BREEBEFEMEL A BN E -

AEBZEAERBERRRE RS EE
Yo AmRTEEEANZER HEAE
ARARRBEEAREER (BRE#ET
B A e et )

EEEHRTEARER Rk AR
BMEEEAKARERBBER X
BRBTHR  EBERMERBRERTE
EVHERENER -

00 000 00000COCEOCOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOEOSOOO EMPERORWATCH&]EWELLERYLIMITED ANNUALREPORT2019 o o oo 0000000000000 0000O0
PR FEER T ARA R 2019 ¥

136



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

HE2019F 128318 IEF &
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 29. & TH
A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS A. ERIBEESR
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FHEIT
Financial assets THEE
At amortised cost bieg: X[/ 444,242 726,440
Financial liabilities THEE
At amortised cost e B 5H AR R 851,622 1,401,292
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. UHEAREEEEREE

AND POLICIES

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits,
amounts due from related companies, bank
balances and cash, trade payables, other payables,
amounts due to related companies, lease liabilities
and bank borrowings. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in their respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (including foreign currency risk
and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

MARKET RISK

The Group’s activities are exposed primarily to
the financial risks of changes in interest rates and
foreign currency exchange rates (see below).
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B HEMEWRGR  HeRe &
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IERE  BaxEe TAEEZ
[ B B 5 T 5 L B (B 15 M EE R B
EMERER) EERBRMESHE
TR o FXEIIREZEFRRZ
BHR -ASEEEBEENERZ
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Akt A 2
&= 18 b °
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &mh T H(#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. BERBREZEEERBX(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued) 7 53 i B (4)

(i) Interest rate risk (i) FIZEREE
The Group exposed to cash flow interest rate NEEEEREZSIRITLE S
risk in relation to floating-rate bank balances (HEBRWFE17) RZERITHE
(see note 17 for details) and floating-rate BE(FBERM T2 EHEZRE
bank borrowings (see note 24 for details) and e ER e - IR E R E F
also exposed to fair value interest rate risk NMNEXBEABREHEZANERE
in relation to fixed rate lease liabilities (see A =R (B RHFE19) - K
note 19 for details). The Group cash flow SEsReRENERREE
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the SPRBITEBRFEEE - F
fluctuation of interest rates on bank balances, BIRITEBEMELE ZBEBRIT
HIBOR and SIBOR arising from the floating- A ZE 97 2 55 I SR 1T R 39
rate bank borrowings. The Group aims at B - NEBBNAERKEE
keeping bank borrowings at floating rates. The RIEZBNEGTE - NEER
Group manages its interest rate exposures by WA AR EKFERAIRAE
assessing the potential impact arising from any *ZETT*'JT“@JF)ﬂgizﬁ
interest rate movements based on interest rate g NWERBAENXER
level and outlook. The management will review Ei%ﬂ#%&ﬁﬁ&ﬁ?ﬂﬂ%
the proportion of bank borrowings in fixed MITEE 2L - UHERZS
and floating rates and ensure they are within BEREREEHERRA -

reasonable range.

Sensitivity analysis B 5T

The sensitivity analyses below have been AT 8RR JE 5 47 TH AR 15 72 BE 3R
determined based on the exposure to interest HRZAERBETE - {ED
rates at the end of the reporting period. The AT B T (R 3% B0 55 B S A 4 SR B
analysis is prepared assuming the financial RAREEZ 2B ITERERES
instruments outstanding at the end of the E—E#HFAREENRRE - @A
reporting period were outstanding for the HEXrE2EE ABERMNEER
whole year. A 100 basis point (2018: 100 B h 0 B R TT I B R 100%
basis point) increase or decrease in floating- 25 (20184 : 100E B FH % A&
rate bank borrowings are used when reporting %E% CIIRMEBEHMNES
interest rate risk internally to key management PEEEFH2TE  c ARES
personnel and represents management’s puf%/%gfﬁﬁ EERFTEE 2B
assessment of the reasonably possible change REMERBIYTEE - W
in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded I G SRIT R R AR E
from sensitivity analysis as the Directors 1T o

consider that the exposure of cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating-rate bank
balances is insignificant.
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued)

B.

()

(ii)

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2018: 100 basis points) higher/lower and
all other variables were held constant, the
Group’s pre-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2019 would decrease/increase by
HK$7,909,000 (2018: HK$11,565,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its floating-rate bank
borrowings.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain sales and purchases
transactions and bank balances denominated
in MOP, USD, Renminbi (“RMB”), Singapore
Dollars (“SGD”) and Malaysian Ringgit
("MYR”) which are the currencies other than
the functional currencies of respective group
entities. As the foreign exchange rate of HK$
is closed to MOP and HK$ is pegged with
USD, the Directors consider the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk of these
currencies is minimal. The Group manages its
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movements of the foreign currency rates. The
Directors conduct periodical review of foreign
currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign exchange exposure should
the need arise.

29. & TH(#)
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B.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HE2019F 128318 IEF &
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &k T H (&)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. XEAMEEEEREREK(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
MARKET RISK (Continued) 7 53 i B (4)
(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SPEREE(E)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s monetary RERAR  NEBUEBE
assets and liabilities, including inter-group EERBNEEEE I TS
balances at the end of the reporting period ENEREEREBBERES

that are denominated in currencies other than FAEER)BREME N T
the functional currency of the relevant entities
are as follow:
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TETT
Assets BE
Third parties E=7
HK$ BT 1,379 1,108
MOP BT 25,335 38,452
usD ETT 732 2,085
RMB AR 18 69
MYR SRATSH 30 192
Inter-group balances FEEE
SGD ¥ N3 7T 1,111 101,114
MYR BREESTH 10,541 9,923
Liabilities a8fE
Third parties EF=r
MOP P 5,305 11,739
usD ey 39 23,428
Inter-group balances FEEE B
HK$ 7B 7T 858,395 858,395
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. &Rt TH#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. BERBEZEEERBX(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

MARKET RISK (Continued) 7 53 i B (4)

(i)  Foreign currency risk (Continued) (i) SPEEEE(E)
Sensitivity analysis R 2T
The sensitivity analysis below details the TR B E DT AN & B
Group’s sensitivity to a 6% (2018: 6%) increase EEEBEE 2 WEEEBRS
in the functional currencies of the relevant B Z SN F6% (20184F : 6%)
group entities, relative to respective foreign ZHRERE  c REBZHRES
currencies. The sensitivity analysis of the T I1 B 45 & [ R 45 B4 P AR CIE
Group also includes foreign currency exposure Z N R B o R L E6%
on inter-group balances. 6% (2018: 6%) is (20184F : 6%) W E R E L INE
the sensitivity rate used in the management’s [EXAIge A IR IR B BFTIE
assessment of the reasonably possible change B2 - RESINERRE
in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity DAVONEEE 2 BHIFE - W
analysis includes only foreign currencies P ¥} HA K 126% (20184 : 6%)
denominated monetary items and adjusts their HNEETE R F B FRIRE o WE
translation at the end of the reporting period EEEEEE 2 WEEBRLS
for a 6% (2018: 6%) change in the foreign BZNETHE,F21E6% :

currency rates. If the functional currencies of
the relevant group entities strengthen/weaken
6% against respective foreign currencies:

Translation reserve would have increased/ HREERGEHR(DASE
decreased by HK$50,805,000 (2018: RBARIKEEFEFR LS
HK$44,841,000) as a result of change in BRI D) 2B EX
foreign currency rates of inter-group balances, 2w EXEEZEN R
as the inter-group balances form part of the 150,805,000/ T (20184 :
Group’s net investments in subsidiaries. 44,841,000 7T) °

Pre-tax profit for the year would have HREBZFAATZEEK
decreased/increased by HK$1,283,000 BENEEXRES  XFE
(2018: Pre-tax profit for the year would have 2 B B AT & ) AR A1 0
decreased/increased by HK$1,673,000) as a 1,283,000/% 7T (20184 : % F
result of change in foreign currency rates of £ B B AT & A R 21 N
third parties’ assets and liabilities. 1,673,000/8 7T) °
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT

Credit risk refers to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default on their contractual
obligations resulting in financial losses to the Group.
The Group’s credit risk exposures are primarily
attributable to trade receivables, other receivables,
rental deposits, amounts due from related
companies and bank balances. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial
assets.

The Group performed impairment assessment for
financial assets under ECL model. Information about
the Group’s credit risk management, maximum
credit risk exposures and the related impairment
assessment, if applicable, are summarised as
below:

Trade receivables

Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Limits and scoring attributed to
customers are reviewed annually. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in the PRC and
Hong Kong, which accounted for 80% (2018: 55%)
and 14% (2018: 40%) of the total trade receivables
as at 31 December 2019, respectively. In order
to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.

B.

29. &M TH#E)

BHERBREEERRBE(E)

1 B I B 2% i AE 7 A

FEERAREASEHFHERKRS
é%%%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%l%i%%%

BOER - AEEEEBRNEER
TERBEZEWFA ﬁ@ﬁ%

FE - Heke  EUREEARR
BERRTES  AEEALEFBE
{A] 45 #0 m =k H A 15 P 08 AR B DA AR
FHEEREEFENEERR

AEEREEHEEEREEA S
BMEEETHERNG BHEAKE
MEERRER HENKAKEE

M&ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁméﬂwwj
%H%mQWF=

). 1.¢ ¢ |
REZHEPH  AKEERAE

EEFIPERGAIHBERFNE
EEx UTARFATEEEE -
EEFMBEELRTIEBFHET AR
e HMEE MR B R Y - R
ERBETSHELDBHES - 5
- ARBEERE  ALBMNE
ERBEBEBZRD -

BiwEREDAEB ZZERREE
EFRFPEEEE - R2019F12H

31ED ML E SR GRIA B 5 2 80%
(20184 : 55%) M 14% (2018$ :
40%) - BEAERBEEERR - K
EEEEEREKE %%;fmﬁh
HEREEMHZ-
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &t T H#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXERBREEEEREE(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT 17 B I B T i e AT A (42)
(Continued)
In addition, the Group performs impairment AN AEERBEEBEEBHEBEE
assessment under ECL model on trade balances AMESEHER S E R EER
individually or based on provision matrix. Except TER R ERT 1A © /,JI)DJ‘J.:HEE’JIE
for items that are subject to individual evaluation, B # 17 E B R E uﬂﬁﬂ\ BT E
which are assessed for impairment individually, the JiE U 5 Iﬁﬁﬁ%%’éﬁ%ﬁ@%mﬁﬁ
remaining trade receivables are grouped under () oL B 5 R B 18 A5 AT R 4B Bl E 1T
a provision matrix based on different groups of D RESHEHRKEBARES
debtors which share common risk characteristics GRS TR BB RE A
that are representative of the debtors’ ability to pay BRI A EERERKA - 2L
all amounts due in accordance with the contract BEHBHRAMETC

terms, and individually for credit impaired debtors.
Details of the quantitative disclosures are set out
below in this note.

Other receivables, rental deposits and amounts BEMEKZE HLtHEEREKE
due from related companies BAARE

The directors of the Company have taken into ARREZERBBARHOLR R
account internal credit rating based on the FEEEZURSEER RIEALE
historical default experience and credit quality and E B M INED2RR (aniE ) Z B A 56
various external sources of actual and forecast SEFR  UAFSEEMERE
economic information, as appropriate, in estimating EEESBRATHSHBEANZ
the probability of default of each of the other EERONITREEUARSEBLTH
financial assets occurring within their respective BREBX - RTETRETE %
loss assessment time horizon, as well as the loss ZoMEENTEHEERBKLRI2
upon default in each case. For the purpose of ERABHEEBEETHE - B
impairment assessment, the ECL of these financial CHERA/ALTEXN BB EER
assets is measured under 12-month ECL. No ECL EHEEBER®E -

allowance has been recognised as the amount is
not considered to be material.

Bank balances R 1745 8t

The credit risk on bank balances is limited because HRRZEFREBREETRK
the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings T%E%‘Fj%mﬁféﬁ W2 RIT - AR
assigned by international credit-rating agencies. HRZEERRAER

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid BEASMAESEEFRNRTH
funds which are deposited with several banks with nBEeNEPREERRI  AE
high credit ratings, the Group does not have any B mEMEMEREFEER
other significant concentration of credit risk. % o
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

29.

S LTRE)
B. MEEMEBEEREIE(E)

1 1% I B % v A A A (48

A o [ 7 50 2 L I T A o T 714
B4R A

Internal Other financial
credit rating Description Trade receivables assets
REEEFR B8R B EWRRIE HthemMEE

Low risk The counterparty has a low  Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL

1K 2 B risk of default and does not credit-impaired 12{E AFE iz E & 18
not have any past-due > HITEHEEEIE
amounts - EEERE

RE5HFHZENRRBRBIE -
B 3 £ (£ 0] 80 B3 K08 SRR

Watch list Debtor with past-due Lifetime ECL — 12-month ECL

BERAE amounts and frequently not credit-impaired 121E A& Bz B & 1B
repays after due dates ’\Hﬂ TE HiEEEIE

KRENRINBEERER BEERE
BHREBNEBA

Doubtful There have been significant  Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

17 & increases in credit risk not credit-impaired not credit-impaired
since initial recognition >HEHEEBEE 2HBEHEEEBR
through information - EEERE —EEERE
developed internally or
external resources

BRI W EBZ B 2 & K 3 o1 &P
BIR EERREVIRE
MJ«MK%E%i‘jJD

Loss There is evidence indicating Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —

B8 the asset is credit- credit-impaired credit-impaired
impaired >HEHEEESE 2HEHEEERE
BEBRREELR —E2fEERIE —BfEERE
BEERE

Write-off There is evidence indicating Amount is written off Amount is written off

! that the debtor is in severe 7K T # :T $4 TRIE L 8

financial difficulty and the
Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery
ERBETEGEAERY
BEVHRRNHERAEE
i34 R eI =]
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H E2019F12A31HILFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. &Rt TH#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. MEEBEEAERRIEX(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT e 8 B T v A 7 1 (42)
(Continued)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures TEFEAEEemEE(RETT
of the Group’s financial assets which are subject to EHEEBRANMMAEEZES
ECL assessment: J2 B
External Internal 12-month or Gross
credit rating  credit rating  lifetime ECL carrying amount
ShE A 12EAER2H
EEIAR H-EE RHEERE REAE
2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 3x TERT TET
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBHEA AR EREE
Trade receivables 1 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL 50,034 61,336
BRI FIE TER (Bt &E1) (not credit-impaired)
CHENEEER
(BEEERE)
Credit-impaired 682 4,519
EREERE
Other receivables 2 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 33,654 32,814
H fth B W 5008 i 15 B B REREHEESE
Rental deposits 2 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 116,721 -
Heke i 15 = B PREAEHEEERE
Amounts due from 2 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 3,924 5,034
related companies i A NEN REREHEESE
JE Y B i A ) 5B
Bank balances 3 A or above N/A 12-month ECL 232,948 622,410
RITHEH AR £ TEH REAEHEEEBE
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HE2019F 128318 IEF &
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. &R TH(#E)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. HMEEBREEEERBE(E)

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

Notes:

1 1% I B % v A A A (48

3 :

Trade receivables primarily consist of credit card
sales and department store sales from customers or
department store. The Directors monitor their balances
on an ongoing basis. Trade receivables in connection
with invoices settled through credit card or e-payment
platforms such as Alipay or WeChat Pay are also with
high credit rating and no past due history. For the
trade receivables in connection with department stores,
the management of the Group considers these assets
are short-term in nature and the probability of default
is negligible on the basis of high internal credit-rating
issuers during the year. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

In determining the ECL for other receivables, rental
deposits and amounts due from related companies,
the management of the Group has taken into account
the historical default experience and forward-looking
information, as appropriate, and concluded that
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding other
receivables, rental deposits and amounts due from
related companies are insignificant. The management
of the Group has assessed that other receivables,
rental deposits and amounts due from related
companies have not had a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition and risk of default
is insignificant, and therefore, no impairment has been
recognised.

The Group measures the loss allowance on liquid funds
equal to 12-month ECL. The credit risk on liquid funds
is limited because cash are placed with reputable
banks with external credit rating of at least “A” assigned
by an international credit-rating agency or state owned.

BHRBFBIEBRE KRBT, X
BERAZEAREERAERT
HE EFTHERHEMAR - EE
BEARREFINTE(WXNE
EMEXMEECRZERCES
RUHREHAEESEEFRELE
BHARNREE  HEAERFAER
ZBSEWFEANS  AEBEER
ERRZEEAEBRYMEED YT E
REABEEFRARD ERFER
WHER 2 AT AR ME AT E 08 - Uk T3
HEERARAEEZEERRE
BERD -

REEEMEWRKE Hekek
BB ERBRAEZABERRR
FEH O AEEEBECEBAEE
EZRBEERCERATELEER
IR A AR E 2 KEE R EWR
IR HEme L EWEERRK
BEANEZEERBRAEEN - KN
EEEECE  HtENHEAE -
HekeMEKBEEQRTREAZE
5 R B B 0 56 T SR DA 2R 3 I B AR 1Y
- B R EBRAEEM Bt
A L RO (B o

AEEFERPDES 2 BBERER
HEMEAEHEERBE - R
EozFEARER  REANES
DiERRAERENIBEETRE
PEHALI(HBEREEFREE
BY)2RITHBEAIRTA -

RAFEL BN BEARITRER

RER -

There has been no change in the estimation
techniques or significant assumptions made
throughout the year.

TRBRESLE R ETRE R H
BHRNFAERNEHEHREE
BEEE:

The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables
which are assessed for impairment individually:
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29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 29. @ TR (#)

B.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK AND IMPAIRMENT ASSESSMENT
(Continued)

Movement in the allowance for credit losses:

B. HMEEMEBEEREE(E)

1 18 I B % v A A A (48

FEEBEBRENEH BN

Lifetime ECL

(credit —

impaired)

2 Hi 8 5

FEEBR

(BfEERE)

HK$'000

FHT

As at 1 January 2018 20181 /A1H -

Impairment losses recognised B W R E &8 4,519

As at 31 December 2018 201812 H31H 4,519

Impairment losses recognised EERREEE 682

Impairment losses reversed WEEERED (4,519)

As at 31 December 2019 R2019512 A31H 682
LIQUIDITY RISK i B & & MK

The Group’s liquidity position is monitored closely
by the management of the Company. In the
management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
adequate to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities based on the agreed repayment
terms. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows. To the extent that interest cash
flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount is
derived from interest rate curve at the end of the
reporting period.

AEEZRBE SR ABAREE
BEZYER REERDHESA
S8 AKREEBREFEHNR
ERREFEBWKE  UBEAARE
BEKLRERETERDTE -

TRFNIASESRABNEER
EREZTEFRH NGB ENEF
Hl e TRIIRBEAKE AW ERE
RZERFAMZREBABZRE
AREMNERHE - TREHAFE
RARERERE - UFEBHERZF
BRERAME  AMBEFBERER
[E R B R 2 M R ph g -
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HZE2019F12A31H IEFE
29. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 20. &Rt THE)
B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES B. WXEREEEEREE(E)
AND POLICIES (Continued)
LIQUIDITY RISK (Continued) i B & B (FE)
Carrying
Weighted Repayable More than More than amount at
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
effective or within  less than less than Over undiscounted the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
mEFY  HERER 1FULEE 2FHLEAE KUREE RERHRZ
BENE HEFFER DR25F DREFE HEB5F hREAR FREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FTERT TR TR TR
At 31 December #2019
2019 12A318
Trade and other B5 N EAM
payables FE R IE - 59,660 - - - 59,660 59,660
Amounts due to related & {7 8 & 12 7]
companies B = 1,030 = = = 1,030 1,030
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.36 199,467 65,261 490,972 151,659 907,359 790,934
Lease liabilities HEARE 3.36 304,760 197,553 143,947 = 646,260 619,297
564,917 262,814 634,919 151,659 1,614,309 1,470,921
Carrying
Weighted  Repayable  More than ~ More than amount at
average on demand 1 year but 2 years but Total the end of
effective or within less than less than Over undiscounted  the reporting
interest rate 1 year 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows period
mEFY BERER 1FNULEE 2FNUEE AERRE RERHK
ERAE BESIFA D2 DREE HBRSF mE B ZEHE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FHET FHET FET
At 31 December 2018 #2018 12A31H
Trade and other BHREM
payables JE 5 3R IE - 240,725 - - - 240,725 240,725
Amounts due to related &1 B & 2 7]
companies A - 4,072 - - - 4,072 4,072
Bank borrowings RITEE 2.88 583,310 140,680 138,136 414,491 1,276,617 1,156,495
828,107 140,680 138,136 414,491 1,521,414 1,401,292
C. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL C. ZRMEEREBGBZAAEBERE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EERR REBHEHRARKEEWH
BEREEZEMEEREREE
ZEHEREREZAAEERE °

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate to their fair values.
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30. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 30. M ALH
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by REBONREAEERERAERD
the Group for its offices and shops. Leases are negotiated HEN2HE - KA MERESRN
for terms ranging from one month to five years with fixed T—RBAZRF  AHEE mETE
monthly rentals and certain operating leases are subject EHEAXRBACEXEREGARK
to contingent rents based on a fixed percentage of the HMENRZEZRZBETAED LR ZXK
monthly gross turnover in excess of the monthly minimum N2 FTHRPR - & £2018F12HA31H Lt
lease payments. During the year ended 31 December FE BHEAVDEINOKREBELNRK
2018, minimum lease payments and contingent rent KA £ 5 5l £401,577,000% T &
paid in respect of rented premises amounted to 29,899,000/% TT °
HK$401,577,000 and HK$29,899,000 respectively.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments 201812 H31H » AEE R T Al 8
for the future minimum lease payments under non- EMRY  RHEREAMEILZERK
cancellable operating leases in respect of rented REHEEMIHBLNT
premises which fall due as follows:
2018
HK$'000
FHETT
Within one year —FR 313,252
In the second to fifth year inclusive F_ZFNF(BEEEMF) 245,645
558,897

Included in the above is future lease payments with
related companies of approximately HK$212,829,000
which fall due as follows:

iR EREEMSTEERR ZAKMA
% B X 49212,829,000% 7T H X HIBR
R

2018
HK$'000
TAETT

Within one year

s

In the second to fifth year inclusive

5

—FR

Paray
ES)

126,091

A (BIEEREMT) 86,738

212,829
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31. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 31. BEARKE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Capital expenditure in respect of EHABBEERIAERNE
acquisition of property, plant and B BHRERBEEB Y
equipment contracted for but not X BBELRBEZER
provided in the consolidated financial 3
statements 1,419 4,841
32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 32, Jif B T

The shareholders of the Company passed an ordinary
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 23 May 2018 to approve the adoption of a share
option scheme of the Company (“2018 Share Option
Scheme”). During the Year, no share options were granted
under the 2018 Share Option Scheme.

A summary of the 2018 Share Option Scheme is set out
as follows:

1. PURPOSE

To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented eligible participants to strive for future
development and expansion of the Group.

2. ELIGIBILITY

Eligible participants include employees (whether
full-time or part time, including any Executive
Director, Non-executive Director or Independent
Non-executive Director) and such other eligible
participants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 32.

3. TOTAL NUMBER OF SHARES AVAILABLE FOR
ISSUE

i. No. of Shares: 687,308,812 Shares,
representing 10% of the total number of issued
shares as at 23 May 2018, the date of passing
the resolution for adoption of the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

ii. Percentage of the issued shares that it
represents as at 30 March 2020 (the date of
this annual report): 10.14%.

4. MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH ELIGIBLE
PARTICIPANT

i. in aggregate not to exceed 1% of the Shares in
issue in any 12-month period unless approved
by the Shareholders; and

ii. options granted to eligible participant in excess
of the 1% limit must be approved by the
Shareholders.

5. PERIOD WITHIN WHICH THE SHARES MUST BE
TAKEN UP UNDER AN OPTION

At any time from the date of grant of the option to
such a date determined by the Board but in any
event no exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

6. MINIMUM PERIOD FOR WHICH AN OPTION MUST
BE HELD BEFORE IT CAN BEEN EXERCISED

No minimum period unless otherwise determined by
the Board.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

7. (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of
the option: HK$1.00;

(i) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date
of grant; and

(i) Period within which loans for such purposes
of the payments or calls must be repaid: Not

Jil Jie it 3 (4%

7.

(i)  FARA I A I RECRE 5 P B A
BB 1.008 7T

(i) NHIBAMRZERE: ®E
HERfE:T28H N : &

(i) EEEMFRIBAONRARD
EREIR: NEA o

applicable.

8. BASIS FOR DETERMINING THE EXERCISE 8. BEETEEZEE
PRICE
The exercise price is determined by the Board THEEREESEC(ATTHAE)
(subject the adjustment) and will not be less than the HETAERTI&EEE () RHRH
highest of (i) the closing price of the Share as stated EARHRBREBERERMAT
in daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on ZWHE: R(iROREZELNA
the offer date; and (i) the average closing price of HIRISEE X BRI ARESR
the Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets FR R 2 F W TE -
of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the offer date.

9. REMAINING LIFE 9. i Bk Z 58

Approximately 8 years (expiring on 22 May 2028).

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31
December 2019, no option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or remained outstanding under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme.

#)184F (FA202845 8228 f@m) °

R E 22018512 A318 K2019512 A31
BIEFE - BEEREARE2018F B
BRI - 17 EESIIRITE ©
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33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES 33. JBRARFE A L #

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

The Group participates in both a defined contribution
schemes which are registered under the Hong Kong
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO”
Scheme) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) established under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately
from those of the Group, in funds under the control of
independent trustees. Employees who were members of
the ORSO Scheme prior to the establishment of the MPF
Scheme were offered a choice of staying within the ORSO
Scheme or switching to the MPF Scheme, whereas all
new employees joining the Group on or after 1 December
2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The retirement benefit costs charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income represents contributions payable to the funds by
the Group at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
Where there are employees who leave the ORSO Scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the amount of
forfeited contributions.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee. The maximum
amount of contribution is limited to HK$1,500 per each
employee.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions
from both employees and the Group at 5% of the
employee’s basic salary.
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

33.

34.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (Continued)

The eligible employees of the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC, Macau, Singapore are members of pension
schemes operated respective local governments. The
subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage ranging from 38% to 44% of the
relevant cost of the payroll of these employees to the
pension schemes to fund the benefits. The subsidiary
in Macau is required to contribute MOP60 for every
employee per month while the subsidiary in Singapore
is required to contribute 16% of the employee’s monthly
gross salary. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the required
contribution under the schemes.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$24,419,000 (2018: HK$22,998,000) represents
contributions, payable to those plans by the Group at the
rate specified in the rules of the plans.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The terms and balances with related companies at the
end of the reporting periods are set out in consolidated
statements of financial position and note 22.

33.

34.

XN ER S 1)

ARRARFE R R 0 2 B A
AZEEREERBENMBRFER 2R
KeFtEKE  PEZMBARARA
MEEHFSHBARAZETAI L (T F
38% £44%) SR FR RS EHI - B
wANREHRES BFAIZHMBARZASEA
w4 (B B L R60IR FI T - M ¥ A0 3¢ M
BB EMER AFASRIEL16%MH
Ko AEBBERERNKRBEMNGFE ZHE—&
ERBREFEELPTAMR -

18 = T R A 48 B 24,419,000/ T
(20184F : 22,998,000/8 7T) A AN E B %
EHERAMBAENEBRERZSE
EH AR -

A 18T 2 5
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HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

During the year, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties:

34. BT R 5 ()
RER AEBRBETZXHWMT:

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
(1)  Sales of goods to Directors, HEBMTESE FEZILHR
their close family members & RB3:E A& (M stakb)
and related companies
(notes a and b) 5,013 4,846
(2)  Rental, electricity and air- EXMRENTHEEARZ
conditioning expenses paid &  BEERTEHE I H
and payable to related (M 5Fa Ko)
companies (notes a and c) 349 176,094
(3)  Service charge in respect EXNREMNTHEQRSH
of information system and BRESRMRITHIEZ
administrative work paid and R & (Mf sFa kb)
payable to related companies
(notes a and b) 14,800 15,981
(4)  Advertising expenses paid EXNRENTHEEARZ
and payable to related B &5 (Mtsta K b)
companies (notes a and b) 527 1,414
(5)  Financial advisory fee paid EXf&ENTFT—HBELQA
and payable to a related Z R E R (M akb)
company (notes a and b) 420 420
(6)  Interest expenses on MEEARIEL 2HEARR
lease liabilities to related B (Fff sFa)
companies (note a) 5,606 -
(7)  Expenses relating to short-  [ABEQAAEL 2 BEHHEE
term leases and other leases N EMMAHEHAERSTEH
with lease terms and within 7 ¥R & % B 5165%F 2 B#E&F12
12 months of the date of BARNER2HEEB A
initial application of HKFRS  (Bff #¥afc)
16 to related companies
(notes a and c) 1,958 -

On 12 December 2018, the Group acquired (8)

entire equity interest
Group and the amount

in by Perfect Raise
due

to a fellow

MR2018F12 A12H » NEE AR
£1,151,472,000/8 T W EE E 5 &
B2l ERENES
AZBRRIZHIE - BEX S

subsidiary of Perfect Raise at consideration of
HK$1,151,472,000. Details of the transaction are
stated in the note 27.

IBERA M 5E27 o
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34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, deposits paid to related
companies amounting to HK$45,768,000 (2018:
HK$56,590,000) was included in rental deposits under
non-current assets.

34.

BE TR 5 ()

MR2019F12A31H EX M ¥ & A
Al 27 & 4£45768,000i# 7T (20184 :
56 590,000 L) B AERBEE 2
Bk -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had recognised R2019F12 H31H - AKECEBER
lease liabilities of approximately HK$117,118,000 for the AMHE®REE B ELHR117118,000

leases with related companies.

Notes:

(a) The related companies are controlled by a Director or
private trusts of which another Director is one of the eligible
beneficiaries.

(b) These transactions are connected transactions exempt from

BT ©
2

() MERFH-—BESILAGE(EZ—%
EERHEP-—REBERIE A EH -

(b) ZEXRSABIE ETHAFE14A33KEER

announcement, reporting and independent shareholders’ RETAE  ERLBILREIEZR
requirements under Rule 14A.33 of the Listing Rules. EWBERS

(c) The expenses paid are in relation to the tenancy agreements
entered into with the related companies of the Company.
Some of these transactions are discloseable continuing

() ENZXHETEREARRBEEARTLZ
HEWZS -  HPRLULZXGTIARA 2 AT
BEFERERS (ER R LWRRIE14A

connected transactions (as defined under Chapter 14A ) EFBERESFS iﬁt‘:fé%%‘ij(?é
of the Listing Rules) of the Company which details are Z - ;ZTJF_JZA%Z*E S RAERSIET
disclosed under the section headed “Continuing Connected (FHEEERS | —EHE -

Transactions” under “Directors’ Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements or Contracts of Significance and Connected
Transactions” of the Directors’ Report.

The compensation to the Directors and key management
personnel of the Group are disclosed in note 9.

AEFBEENTEEBAEZ#HE
B sEOH 5 o
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING  35. il % ¥ B 2 4k < S 5 #HiR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flows were,
or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s

TR AEEREEHAEENARE
HEPFB - -RELHFELENBER/S
RAEBEGARASTRERTOERRE
AR HRERENBRERERRKR

consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from TME °
financing activities.
Lease Bank Dividend
liabilities borrowings payable Total
HEEE RITEE ENRE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FET FET
As at 1 January 2018 20181 A1H - - - -
Financing cash flows: HERERE:
- Bank borrowings raised -BEER/BZRITEE - 522,745 - 522,745
- Repayments of bank borrowings -HERITEE - (3,256) - (3,256)
- Interest paid -BERFEA - (4,095) - (4,095)
- Dividends paid - Ef®E - - (87,320) (87,320)
Net cash from financing cash flows RERSREMSZRETE - 515,394 (87,320) 428,074
Interest expenses A BRX - 4,095 - 4,095
Dividends recognised BEERRKE - - 87,320 87,320
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries (note 27) A Ui B B BB &) i 7 A (MY 5E27) - 637,006 - 637,006
As at 31 December 2018 72018124318 - 1,156,495 - 1,156,495
Adjustment upon adoption of HKFRS 16 (note 2) RRAEAMERE LR
16k B R (HiE2) 480,281 - - 480,281
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 A1 480,281 1,156,495 - 1,636,776
Financing cash flows: BMERSNE:
- Bank borrowings raised -BEBZEITEER - 1,079,071 - 1,079,071
- Repayments of bank borrowings -HEBHRITEE - (1,444,632) - (1,444,632)
- Repayments of lease liabilities -EEHEBE (286,531) = = (286,531)
- Interest paid -BRFE (20,683) (36,253) - (56,936)
- Dividends paid -BERRA = = (61,015) (61,015)
Net cash used in financing cash flows REFGREMAZEEGFE (307,214) (401,814) (61,015) (770,043)
New leases entered or modified AVSRERzHEE 429,964 = = 429,964
Termination of leases HERKILE (4,417) = - (4,417)
Interest expenses MERAX 20,683 36,253 - 56,936
Dividends recognised EEREKE - - 61,015 61,015
As at 31 December 2019 #2019F12A31A8 619,297 790,934 = 1,410,231
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND  36. /A w2 B % ik Ol # % 5% 6 5
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBRRIZRE 2,060,305 1,583,094
Amount due from a subsidiary EW—EHB AR KA 2,447,567 1,572,879
4,507,872 3,155,973
Current assets REBEE
Deposits and prepayments Ee RFEMNHRIE 541 546
Taxation recoverable AJ Y [ 56 18 - 34
Amount due from a subsidiary FE W — I B B A & BUIAR - 1,235,495
Amount due from a related company FEU— R EER 7 X I8 - 5,034
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 1,063 1,662
1,604 1,242,771
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accrued Hih B RIBEREGER
charges 353 387
Amount due to a subsidiary &~ —E W%“ /TJ\IE 88,822 57,206
Amount due to a related company  JE{F—[E B & FRIE 35 -
89,210 57,593
Net current (liability) asset REB(BBE)EEZFE (87,606) 1,185,178
Net assets EEFRE 4,420,266 4,341,151
Capital and reserve EXRf#E
Share capital [i% 7 3,484,152 3,484,152
Reserve R 936,114 856,999
Total equity 48 RE 4,420,266 4,341,151
The Company’s statement of financial position was NPT Z AR R & 7 2020F3 A30H
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KREFGHERKENE LHTIE
Directors on 30 March 2020 and are signed on its behalf EREESE
by:
CINDY YEUNG WONG CHI FAI
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EZE
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36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 36. A2 w]Z %k Ol ik & X (&)
RESERVE OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

MOVEMENT IN THE COMPANY’S RESERVE KRBz #EES

Retained

profits

RE & F

HK$'000

FET

At 1 January 2018 MR2018%F1 /518 802,153
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FR&F| &2 HE W A 25 193,360
Repurchase of ordinary shares (6] B % 38 AR (51,194)
Final dividend paid for 2017 2017 KRHARR B (39,864)
Interim dividend paid for 2018 20184 A HR A% B (47,456)
At 31 December 2018 7R20184F12 A31H 856,999
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year W& Fll & & E U A 42 %8 140,130
Final dividend paid for 2018 2018 F R HA Iz & (37,287)
Interim dividend paid for 2019 2019 R Hifx B (23,728)
At 31 December 2019 R2019512 A31H 936,114
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

T MG A F Z w1

R2019F 201812 A31H * A AR X E
MEAR ZFFIBWT

Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
E&f
R/ LERRE/ rEERE
WEARER BEMEY dMEX BRTRAZILA IERH
2019 2018
Direct subsidiaries
EENEAT
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited ("HK") 18T REZRK
REEEKRE(PE)ERERAA BB
Emperor Watch & Jewellery (China) BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Holdings Limited EERNES Y RERRK
REEFRE(PE)ERERRA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
(HK & Macau) Holdings Limited KERTES Ep RERK
REBRAE(BR)ZERERRA
Emperor Watch & Jewellery HK HK$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Overseas Holdings Limited A 1% REER
REBFREBHERERRA
Indirect subsidiaries
BEHBELT
Beauty Royal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
ERERLA BA 2B agent services
RUSEHERBRY
Charter Loyal Limited HK HK$2 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BLBERRR A 2B agent services
RESERERBRE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery HK HK$100 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
(HK) Company Limited A 1007 7T jewellery
REEHERE(FB)ERRA HEBKLKRE
Emperor Watch & Jewellery Malaysia MYR3,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of jewellery
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. SRED 3,000,000 HERE
EREATLE
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B E2019F12A31H IEF &
37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37 FEMEA®Z (&)
(Continued)
Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
BR{T
Ri/ER/ LERRE/ rRERE
WEAREE BELE dfmEE BRTRAZILA TEEH
2019 2018
Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BERBLAR(E)
Emperor Watch & Singapore SGD1,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
Jewellery (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. HR 1,000,000% 04 7T jewellery
HEERRIAKE
Esteem Step Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group
ERERDA 2P 25,0008 P97 administration services
RESETHERRS
EWJ Macau Company Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches and
EWSEPBRAA i 25,0002 7T jewellery
HEBKLKE
Foremost Resources Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
EXERERAA BA 1% agent services
REESEMSRERS
Gold Pleasure Investment Limited HK HK$10,000 100% 100%  Property investment
EEREARNRT BB 10,0007 1T NERE
Mount Win Limited HK HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BRERRA ) 1,000,000 T agent services
RUSEHERERY
Phoenix Noble Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group
BHBRAR 2P 25,000E 7 marketing services
RESETSRERS
Success Wealthy Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BEERDA A BT agent services
RESERERBRE
Trillion Winner Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
TTRERRA e 18T agent services
RUSEHERERY
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HZE2019F12A31B LFE
37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. FEME AR Z7EE(Z)
(Continued)
Issued
Place of ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/  Proportion of issued
registration/ registered share capital held
Name of subsidiary operation capital by the Group Principal activities
B#T
R/ LERRE/ rEEEE
WEARERE EENE dfMEE BRTRAZILH TEXRK
2019 2018
Indirect subsidiaries (Continued)
BERBAR(E)
Up Success Limited HK HK$300,000 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
BHERRR B 300,000 T agent services
RUEEHERBRY
Vision Wing Limited Macau MOP25,000 100% 100%  Provision of group
EAERAR B 25,0002 M 1T sourcing services
REEERBRE
Wealthy Able Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
MEERRA Bk 1T agent services
RESERERBRE
Zeal Team Limited HK HK$1 100% 100%  Provision of group tenancy
ZRABRAT Bk 18T agent services
RUSEHERERY
REFFRE (LX) BRRA? PRC HK$280,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
# 280,000,000% 7 jewellery
HEERRIAE
REFFRECRI)BRAR PRC HK$100,500,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
th 100,500,0007% 7 jewellery
HERRNIAE
TREREFERESBRAA PRC HK$73,000,000 100% 100%  Sales of watches &
HE 73,000,000 1T jewellery
HEBRNAE
# The subsidiaries are wholly foreign owned enterprises. # ZEWBRAAIAIEEELE -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities TEHEHT BB AR ZHITEMRESRZ
at the end of the year. % e
The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of EERA/INEHAEBMBEMB AR 25
the particulars of all subsidiaries of the Group will be of BFEFERERELR WEXREINLHY
excessive length and therefore the list above contains only AEBEXENEEEEATEZWER
the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affect the AIFFIE ©

results or assets of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ak B T B iR M

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019
HZ2019F12A31H IEFE

38.

39.

0000000000000 00000 000000 EVPERORWATCH & JEWELLERY LIMITED

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified in
these consolidated financial statements, which have no
effect on previously reported profit for the year, to conform
with the current year’s presentation. In particular, for the
year ended 31 December 2018, depreciation of property,
plant and equipment used for retail shops was reclassified
from administrative expenses to selling and distribution
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Presentation
on respective operating segments in the note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements have been restated to
reflect such changes.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

Since early January 2020, the coronavirus has been
spread across China as well as other countries. Several
travel restrictions have been introduced afterwards
to combat the coronavirus disease, further deterring
numbers of inbound and outbound visitors. The
public health crisis is likely to hinder global economic
development. It is expected that the general consumption
sentiment may even turn stagnant, restraining global
luxury consumption in the near-term. A tough business
environment expected to persist for some time. Since
the duration of the pandemic is still uncertain, the Group
cannot reasonably quantify its financial impact at the date
of these consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue. However, a prolonged outbreak situation may
have a material effect on the Group’s consolidated results
of operations, cash flows and financial condition for the
year ending 31 December 2020.

38. T

39.
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H2020F 1R LAIUR - EAmEREE
FEEEMBEREE - £ AE TR
RERMEBENE TRERWNEE—F
BMAOAEREEERNEE - AXHE
BT SHEBREIREELERE - Bt
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

St 5 it

For the year ended 31 December
BE12AMBLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TR TR TAETT TR FERx

(note)
(Hf &)
RESULT E4
Revenue WA 4,430,846 3,641,845 4,075,124 4722248  4,110.117
(Loss)/profit before BBt (E518)
taxation gl (116,609) (59,843) 173,237 318,253 119,324
Taxation 18 (3,473) (4,978) (13,546) (53,969) (29,293)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ AR HEH A
attributable to owners EIEFE
of the Company (E518),/ & F (120,082) (64,821) 159,691 264,284 90,031
As at 31 December
®W12831H
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
(note)
(Hf &)
ASSETS AND BEERAE
LIABILITIES
Total assets BEE 4,466,392 4,408,032 4,673,484 5969472 6,086,602
Total liabilities BEE (191,196)  (233,922)  (306,799) (1,504,452) (1,613,575)
Net Assets EEFE 4,275,196 4174110 4,366,685 4,465,020 4,473,027
Equity attributable to KRAREAEA
owners of the Company FEAG #E 5
and total equity SRR 4,275,196 4174110 4,366,685 4,465,020 4,473,027

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 16 (see RAFE  AEEBEERE LW B HREELFE16
note 2 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 9% (R 45 & B 75 ¥ 5% MY 52 — &0 2 B 5E248 Fd Bf
section for the summary of the corresponding financial BFEMZ) - Eit - & £2015%F « 20164
impact). Accordingly, certain comparative information for the 201756 & 201812 A31HIEFEME THERE
years ended 31 December 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018 may FIARMEEEEZE2019F12HA31BIEFERE T
not be comparable to the year ended 31 December 2019 as R EREFLL T  RARZFLREH IR
such comparative information was prepared under HKAS 17. B & B LR F17THRGR - HEBAEBY
Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 16 are B EHAE165% MEEN G HE N [EE
disclosed in the “Significant Accounting Policies” Section. ETHR | —EHE -
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